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This Joint Bid Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on 13 September 2023
between:

1)

(2)

The entity whose name and address is set out in Part A of Schedule 1, ultimately controlled
by TDR Capital General Partner V Limited, acting in its capacity as general partner of TDR
Capital General Partner V L.P. (the “TDR Fund”); and

Those entities whose names and addresses are set out in Part B of Schedule 1 (collectively
the “ISQ Funds” and each an “ISQ Fund”),

(together, the “Parties” and the TDR Fund on the one hand and each of the ISQ Funds on
the other hand a “Party”).

Whereas:

(A)

(B)

(©)

The Parties intend to explore the potential voluntary public tender offer (the “Offer”) for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Target for cash consideration in accordance
with the Royal Decree 1066/2007, of July 27, on the rules for public tender offers (Real
Decreto 1066/2007, de 27 de julio, sobre el régimen de las ofertas publicas de adquisicién
de valores) (the “Tender Offer Regulations”) and the future management of Target by
Amber JVCo Limited, a company jointly owned and operated (directly or indirectly) by the
Parties (“Amber JVCo”) following completion of the Offer (the “Transaction”).

It is intended that the Offer will be implemented by Amber EquityCo, S.L.U., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Amber JVCo (“EquityCo”).

The Parties wish to evaluate whether to implement the Offer. This Agreement sets out the
terms and conditions of an agreement between the Parties in connection with the conduct
of such evaluation and, if relevant, the implementation of the Offer, the terms and conditions
of which will be contained in the Offer Documentation, pursuant to and in accordance with
the Tender Offer Regulations.

It is agreed as follows:

Definitions and Interpretation

Definitions

In this Agreement the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:
“Acting in Concert” has the meaning given in article 5 of the Tender Offer Regulations;
“Advisers” means those advisers as agreed between the Parties from time to time;

“Affiliate” means, in respect of a Party, any person that directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, Controls or is Controlled by or is under common Control with that Party
from time to time and includes any funds and/or vehicles managed and/or advised by that
Party or its Affiliates within the meaning of the foregoing but excludes: (a) any portfolio or
investee companies in which any such funds and/or vehicles directly or indirectly hold an
interest or investment; (b) such funds or vehicles which engage primarily in investment in
debt and/or debt securities; and (c) any other person that is not involved, directly or indirectly,
in the private equity business of that person and has not received information in respect of
the Offer;

“Agreement” has the meaning given in the recitals;

“Amber JVCo” has the meaning given in the recitals;
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“Amber JVCo Group” means Amber JVCo together with its subsidiary undertakings from
time to time;

“BidCo” means Amber BidCo, S.L.U.;

“Budget” means the budget for the Joint Bid Costs, ISQ Costs and TDR Costs as may be
agreed between the Parties from time to time;

“CNMV” means the Spanish Securities Market Commission (Comision Nacional del
Mercado de Valores);

“Companies Act Spain” means Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010, of 2 July, approving the
consolidated text of the companies act;

“Companies Act UK” means the Companies Act 2006 as amended at any time prior to the
date hereof;

“Concert Parties” means, in respect of a Party, collectively, any persons Acting in Concert
with such Party, provided that, for the purpose of this Agreement only, neither Party or its
Affiliates shall be deemed to be Concert Parties of the other Party or its Affiliates;

“Confidential Information” means:

(a) all information (in whatever form) supplied by or on behalf of either Party, any of its
Affiliates or any of their respective Representatives, whether before, on or after the
date of this Agreement, in connection with the Offer, including any analyses, reports
or documents which contain or reflect, or are derived or generated from, any such
information;

(b) any information supplied by Target or its professional advisers at any time after any
approach by a Party to the board of directors of Target in connection with the Offer;

(c) this Agreement and any other transaction documents in relation to the Offer; and

(d) the existence, status or progress or any negotiations or discussions relating to the
Offer,;

“Control” with respect to a person: (a) ownership of more than 50 per cent. of the voting
securities of such person; (b) the right to appoint, or cause the appointment of, more than
50 per cent. of the members of the board of directors (or similar governing body) of such
person; or (c) the right to manage, or direct the management of, on a discretionary basis,
the business, affairs and/or assets of such person, and a general partner of a limited
partnership is deemed to Control such limited partnership and a permanent investment
manager of a fund is deemed to Control such fund (and the terms “Controlling” and
“Controlled” shall have meanings correlative to the foregoing);

“Criminal Code Spain” means Organic Act 10/1995, of 23 November, on the criminal code;
“Defaulting Party” has the meaning given in Clause 4.4;
“ECL” has the meaning given in Clause 4.1;

“Effective Date” means the date upon which the Offer is settled in accordance with article
37 of the Tender Offer Regulations;

“Engagement Letters” means each and every engagement letter provided by any Adviser
in connection with the Transaction for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the Parties
(but excluding any engagement letter for the sole benefit of only one of the Parties);
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“Equity Commitment” has the meaning given in Clause 2.7,
“EquityCo” has the meaning given in the recitals;
“EquityCo Board” means the board of directors of EquityCo from time to time;

“ERISA” shall mean the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
as amended,;

“Filing Date” means the earlier of: (a) the date on which the first version of the Offer
Prospectus is filed with the CNMV; and (b) if applicable, the initial announcement of the Offer
in accordance with article 16 of the Tender Offer Regulations;

“Financing” has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.8;
“FinCo” means Amber FinCo PLC;
“Funds” means the TDR Fund or the 1ISQ Funds (as applicable);

“Indemnification Agreement” means each and every agreement in which any Party or its
Affiliates (excluding members of the Amber JVCo Group) agrees to indemnification or other
obligations in connection with the Transaction in respect of, either directly or indirectly, the
Parties (but excluding any agreements entered into for the sole benefit of only one of the
Parties);

“Initial Commitments” has the meaning given in Clause 4.1;
“Initial Investors” has the meaning given in Clause 4.1;
“Initial Investments” has the meaning given in Clause 4.1;
“Investment Date” has the meaning given in Clause 4.1,
“Investors” has the meaning given in Clause 4.1;

“ISQ” means ISQ Global Fund Il GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with its
registered address at 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, DE 19808;

“ISQ Costs” means all costs, fees and expenses incurred in relation to advice specific only
to ISQ and its Affiliates;

“JVCo” means Amber JVCo, EquityCo and any other entities incorporated by the Parties in
relation to the Offer, the parent entity of which shall be Amber JVCo;

“Joint Bid Costs” means, subject to Clause 10.6, costs, fees and expenses incurred by (or
on behalf of) any JVCo or by either Party for the benefit of both Parties, including TDR Costs
and ISQ Costs;

“Linklaters” means Linklaters LLP and Linklaters, S.L.P;;

“Losses” means any losses, claims, damages or liabilities (and any reasonable and
documented professional fees and out-of-pocket expenses in connection therewith);

“Non-Defaulting Party” has the meaning given in Clause 4.4;
“Offer” has the meaning given in the recitals;
“Offer Committee” has the meaning given in Clause 2.9;

“Offer Committee Members” has the meaning given in Clause 2.9;
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“Offer Documentation” has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.6;

“Offer Period” means the period from the Filing Date until the earliest of (i) the Effective
Date, or (ii) the date on which (a) the Parties agree, subject to Tender Offer Regulations, on
the withdrawal of the Offer, or (b) the Offer conditions are neither satisfied nor waived on
time rendering the Offer ineffective;

“Offer Prospectus” means the prospectus setting out the terms and conditions of the Offer;

“Overlapping Syndicatee” shall mean any potential syndicatee designated as an
Overlapping Syndicatee by Kirkland & Ellis International LLP from time to time by virtue of
such potential syndicatee being an existing limited partner or investor in both the TDR Fund
and an ISQ Fund;

“Parties” has the meaning given in the recitals;

“Payee” has the meaning given in Clause 8;

“Payor” has the meaning given in Clause 8;

“Permitted Syndicatee” has the meaning given in Clause 6.3;
“Permitted Syndication” has the meaning given in Clause 6.3;

“Potential Syndicatee” means (i) any Overlapping Syndicatee that is agreed by the Parties
to be a Potential Syndicatee of a Party and (ii) any person that is not an Overlapping
Syndicatee or Restricted Syndicatee;

“Relevant Date” means, in respect of any Party, the date that is six months after the earlier
of: (i) the date on which such Party withdraws from the Offer in accordance with Clause 9.1
below; and (ii) the date on which this Agreement terminates or is terminated in accordance
with Clause 9.3;

“Relevant Proportion” means, in respect of a Party, the proportion that the Initial
Commitment of the Initial Investor(s) of such Party bears to the aggregate of all Initial
Commitments being 50 per cent. each;

“Remaining Party” has the meaning given in Clause 9.2.2;

“Reports and Reliance Letters” means each and every due diligence report (and
associated reliance letter or terms) in connection therewith provided by any Adviser in
connection with the Transaction for the benefit of the Parties (but excluding any due diligence
reports for the sole benefit of only one of the Parties);

“Representatives” means, in respect of any person, its partners, officers, employees
professional advisers, lenders, proposed lenders, auditors and other representatives of such
person;

“Restricted Syndicatee” means:

€)) any person who (as a result of such syndication) would: (i) cause the Amber JVCo
Group to become subject to any regulatory regime that would impose adverse
restrictions or obligations on the Amber JVCo Group; (ii) be required to be registered,
licensed, approved or authorised by any regulator; (iii) be required (or require
EquityCo or any Party) to make an anti-trust, foreign investment or regulatory filing
not contemplated by the Offer Prospectus filed with the CNMV; (iv) be reasonably
likely to cause a material delay in, or jeopardise receipt of, any approval or clearance
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that is required to acquire or operate the Amber JVCo Group or undertake any
transaction or arrangement approved by the EquityCo Board or the board of any
other JVCo; or (v) otherwise be reasonably likely to have any materially adverse
effect on the regulatory or legal position of the Amber JVCo Group;

(b) any person who is subject to insolvency proceedings or analogous events;

(c) any person who is not (prior to such syndication) an existing limited partner or
investor in (i) the TDR Fund or any of the ISQ Funds or (ii) any fund and/or vehicle
under common management or control with the TDR Fund or any of the ISQ Funds;
or

(d) any person that is an existing shareholder of Target.

“Securities Market Act Spain” means Act 6/2023, of 17 March, on Securities Markets and
Investment Services;

“Shareholders’ Agreement” has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.6(i);

“Structure Paper” means the structure paper relating to the Transaction prepared by
Linklaters dated 17 August 2023;

“syndication” means any syndication, transfer or assignment (and “syndicate”, “transfer”
and “assign” and related words and expressions shall have meanings correlative to the
foregoing);

“subsidiary” has the meaning given to such term in the Companies Act UK;
“Syndication Interests” has the meaning given in Clause 6.3;

“Target” means Amber Services, S.A,;

“Target Group” means Target and its subsidiaries;

“Target Securities Interest” means equity and debt securities issued by the Target Group
(including, among others, warrants or other financial instruments carrying the option to
acquire or subscribe for shares);

“TDR” means TDR Capital General Partner V Limited, a limited company incorporated in
Scotland with registered number SC707592, whose registered office is at 50 Lothian Road,
Festival Square, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9WJ and any references herein to TDR shall be
to TDR acting in its capacity as general partner of the TDR Fund;

“TDR Costs” means all costs, fees and expenses incurred in relation to advice specific only
to TDR and its Affiliates;

“Tender Offer Regulations” has the meaning given in the recitals;

“Term Sheet” means the term sheet agreed between the Parties which sets out the principal
terms on which the Parties propose to invest in Amber JVCo in connection with the
Transaction, a copy of which is set out at Schedule 2 of this Agreement; and

“Transaction” has the meaning given in the recitals.
1.2 Interpretation

1.2.1  Clause headings shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.
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1.2.2  Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural
and in the plural shall include the singular.

1.2.3 A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as amended,
extended or re-enacted from time to time and shall include all subordinate legislation
made from time to time under that statute or statutory provision.

1.2.4 References to Clauses are to the clauses of this Agreement and references to
articles are to the relevant article of the Tender Offer Regulations.

1.25  The words “including”, “include”, “in particular” and words of similar effect shall not
be deemed to limit the general effect of the words that precede them.

2 Conduct of the Offer
2.1 The Parties shall agree and implement a strategy for making the Offer.

2.2 The Parties shall, prior to the Filing Date, incorporate the JVCos which are required prior to
the Filing Date for the purpose of the proposed Offer and shall as required agree in good
faith any further matters in relation to the JVCos, including their ownership structure, to
obtain a mutually acceptable and beneficial structure for the Offer, and for holding any shares
in Target acquired by EquityCo pursuant to the Offer, in each case as contemplated by the
Structure Paper. All JVCos are and shall continue to be until the Effective Date, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties, owned (directly or indirectly) by the Parties in the
Relevant Proportions.

2.3 Subject always to the provisions of Clause 8, the Parties agree to work together in good faith
towards reaching unanimous agreement on:

2.3.1 the pricing and other offer terms including the manner of announcement and
implementation of the Offer (and any pricing strategy or revisions relating thereto);

2.3.2  the manner and timing of all discussions with Target, its management and any of its
shareholders or other stakeholders;

2.3.3 the general conduct of the Offer;

2.3.4 the structure of the Offer, including finalising the Structure Paper (it being
acknowledged that a Party will take all reasonable steps to accommodate the other
Party’s structuring requirements in respect of ERISA);

2.3.5 the incorporation of any JVCo and the corporate governance arrangements of such
entities, including the board composition of any such entity, in particular appointing
one or more persons from each Party to facilitate and take responsibility under the
Tender Offer Regulations (together with such other persons as may take
responsibility under Tender Offer Regulations) for each Party as may be reflected in
the Offer Prospectus;

2.3.6 the definitive documentation required to implement the Offer (the “Offer
Documentation”), including:

0] a shareholders’ agreement relating to Amber JVCo (the “Shareholders’
Agreement”) and articles of association or other constitutional documents of
the JVCos, the terms of which shall be consistent with the Term Sheet;
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2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9

2.3.10

2311

2.3.12

2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15

2.3.16

(i) the public documentation necessary or desirable in connection with any
announcement relating to the Offer and implementation the Offer, including
the Offer Prospectus;

(iii) the form of irrevocable undertakings that may be given in connection with the
Offer;

(iv) the ECL and such other documents required for certain funds financing
purposes;

()] the documents required for the Financing (as defined below);

(vi) the terms of appointment of any adviser as set out in an Engagement Letter
between the relevant adviser and any JVCo and/or either Party; and

(vii) any other agreements as may be determined necessary or desirable in
connection with the announcement and implementation of the Offer;

the strategy and financing of any market purchases of Target Securities Interests;

the debt financing of the Offer (the “Financing”), including the selection and
appointment of financing banks, arrangers and other advisers (other than the
financing banks set out in Schedule 2);

the strategy for the syndication of the Financing;

the appointment (other than the advisers set out in Schedule 2) or instruction of any
advisers to or on behalf of any JVCo (but, for the avoidance of doubt, this shall not
apply to any appointment or instruction given to advisers acting on behalf of any
Party where the work undertaken pursuant to such appointment or instruction does
not give rise to the incurrence of Joint Bid Costs);

the scope of confirmatory due diligence on Target;
any decision relating to Target's management;

any decision regarding the seeking or making of an application to cancel the
admission to trading of Target;

the actual or purported waiver, treating as satisfied, invocation or amendment of any
condition or of any pre-condition to the Offer, the extension of any acceptance period
of the Offer or similar and/or the revision of terms of the Offer, or the lapsing or
withdrawal of the Offer;

the strategy to delist Target;

any decision regarding any remedies or divestitures that might be required by a
regulatory or governmental authority in connection with the Offer concerning Target,
including all matters regarding the negotiations and terms and conditions of any such
remedies or divestitures. For the avoidance of doubt, where such decision solely
concerns the asset(s) of any Party (and not Target), such decision shall be made at
the sole discretion of that Party (and if such decision concerns an asset in which
both Parties are invested, the decision shall be made only with the consent of both
Parties);
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2.3.17 any decision to waive any regulatory condition in respect of the Transaction or any
decision to proceed with completion of the Transaction notwithstanding that any such
regulatory condition has not been satisfied; and

2.3.18 subject always to the requirements of the Tender Offer Regulations or other
applicable law or regulation to which the Parties are directly or indirectly subject and
Clause 2.7, the timing of the release of the public documentation contemplated by
Clause 2.3.6(ii) or any other announcement in connection with the Offer.

24 For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties shall not file the Offer Prospectus with the CNMV or
otherwise make any announcement of the Offer until they have reached unanimous
agreement on each matter set out in Clause 2.3 above to the extent that such decisions are
necessary to be taken prior to the Filing Date.

2.5 Neither Party shall, and each Party shall procure that none of its Concert Parties (including,
so far as it is within its powers, any JVCo) shall:

2.5.1 file the Offer Prospectus with the CNMV until the Parties have agreed in writing to
the timing, form and content of such filing;

252 subject to Clause 2.6 below, make any public announcement or external
communication in connection with the Offer, whether formal or informal, until the
Parties have consented in writing to the timing, form and content of such
announcement or communication (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or
delayed); or

253 save to the extent required by law, or any securities exchange or regulatory or
governmental body to which the Party or any Affiliate is subject (including the
CNMV), liaise, negotiate, or otherwise communicate with Target or its shareholders
or advisers, any regulatory authority or exchange, government body, including any
rating agencies or the CNMV with respect to the Offer,

in all cases without the prior consent of the other Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Linklaters shall be entitled to communicate with the CNMV on behalf of EquityCo and the
Parties (together as joint bidders) to the extent they consider reasonably necessary to do so
in relation to their relevant responsibilities in connection with the Offer. In addition, each of
the Parties may communicate with the CNMV in relation to its own position under the Tender
Offer Regulations provided that it shall promptly notify in writing Linklaters if any such
communications with the CNMV take place in connection with the Transaction.

2.6 To the extent any public announcement or external communication is required by the CNMV
or the Tender Offer Regulations to be made concerning the Offer on an urgent basis, the
Parties shall use best endeavours to discuss the terms and contents of such public
announcement or external communication and promptly make relevant representatives
available on short notice for such purpose but, subject to the foregoing, such announcement
or external communication may be made without the prior consent of the other Party.

2.7 Without prejudice to such withdrawing Party’s obligations that otherwise subsist under this
Agreement, if a Party has withdrawn from the Offer in accordance with Clause 9.1 it shall
have no further obligations pursuant to Clauses 2.1 to 2.6 and 2.8 to 2.11 (inclusive) and its
consent shall not be required for the purposes of such Clauses and Clauses 9.2.2, 12.4 and
13.1. Further, if (and for the duration of the period for which) a Party is in material breach of
this Agreement or any Offer Documentation (including in respect of the Subscription of its
Initial Investor(s) under the ECL (as defined therein) (an “Equity Commitment”)), such
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Party’s consent shall not be required for the purpose of Clauses 2.1 to 2.6 and 2.8 to 2.11
(inclusive), 9.2.2, 12.4 and 13.1, and any director of the breaching Party appointed to the
EquityCo Board or the board of any other JVCo shall not be entitled to attend any meeting
of that board or vote on any resolution of that board.

2.8 Each Party undertakes to share with the other Party any material information available to it
relating to Target or the Offer (including to the extent provided by any Adviser in connection
with the Offer (other than such Advisers appointed solely to advise only one of the Parties))
from time to time, including information which is reasonably required:

0] for public disclosure as required by the Tender Offer Regulations;

(i) in connection with any regulatory filings required in any jurisdiction;

(iii) in connection with any process relating to the Avals (as defined in the ECL); or

(iv) in connection with the Financing, but excluding, in respect of any Party, any such

material information which:

(@) relates to that Party only or which that Party is not permitted (under
applicable law or regulation or any agreement with any third party) to share
with the other Party; or

(b) is otherwise not permitted by (or conflicts with) Clause 12. Any commercially
sensitive information (including Confidential Information) relating to either of
the Parties required for any regulatory filings and/or approvals, shall be
provided on a counsel to counsel basis.

2.9 The Parties agree that a bid committee (the “Offer Committee”) shall be formed immediately
following the execution of this Agreement. The Offer Committee shall be comprised of one
representative appointed by each Party (the “Offer Committee Members”) who shall,
unless written notification (including by email) is provided of an alternative appointment, be:

2.9.1 Linda Zhang as the TDR representative; and
2.9.2 Alexander Metelkin as the ISQ representative.

2.10 All decisions of the Offer Committee require the unanimous approval of the Offer Committee
Members other than as expressly provided in Clauses 2.7 (in case of a breach) and 6.4.3.

2.11 Each Party agrees that all consents, approvals, authorities or agreements required to be
given by it pursuant to the terms of this Agreement (including the matters referred to in
Clauses 2.3, 2.4, 9.2.2, 12.4 and 13.1) or otherwise in connection with the Offer shall be
referred to the Offer Committee and shall be deemed to have been given by a Party if
approved in writing by its Offer Committee Member.

3 Regulatory Filings

3.1 The Parties confirm they will continue to refine their analysis as to any anti-trust, or other
regulatory filings or interactions which may be mandatory or advisable for the Offer and shall
collaborate around obtaining necessary or appropriate information from Target.

3.2 The Parties shall work together in good faith with the intention of obtaining clarity between
themselves on any mandatory or advisable filings and, in due course, on the process for
making such filings.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

Bid Financing

Subject to the Shareholders’ Agreement, at the date on which the result of the Offer is
published at the CNMV’s website (or at such other date as is mutually agreed between the
Parties in writing) (the “Investment Date”), in respect of the TDR Fund and the 1SQ Funds
(the “Initial Investors” and, together with any Permitted Syndicatee(s) to whom any
commitment to fund any part of any Equity Commitment under the ECL (as defined below)
is syndicated as part of any Permitted Syndication prior to the Investment Date in
accordance with Clause 6.3, the “Investors”), respectively, shall commit (directly or
indirectly) to EquityCo such amount of cash funding as set out in the ECL, such commitments
to be made in the percentages set out below (the “Initial Commitments”):

4.1.1 the TDR Fund: 50 per cent; and
4.1.2 the ISQ Funds: 50 per cent,

and, subject to the terms of this Agreement, shall contribute some or all of such cash funding
(the “Initial Investments”) to subscribing (directly or indirectly) for securities or instruments
in EquityCo (provided that the Initial Investor(s) of each Party will hold 50 per cent of the
voting rights) pari passu in all respects and such Initial Investments will be made in securities
or instruments of the same type and class, at the same price, and in the same proportions
as between each such type and class. In connection with the Initial Commitments, the Initial
Investors shall provide and be party to an equity commitment letter to EquityCo and the
CCPs (as defined in the ECL) (the “ECL").

The Parties shall co-operate in good faith to ensure that EquityCo will have Financing in
place in relation to the Offer as is required in order to comply with its obligations under the
Tender Offer Regulations and that all cash funding is available as required to satisfy
EquityCo’s requirements in connection with the Offer.

If one or more of the Initial Investors (directly or indirectly) contributes cash funding to the
JVCos pursuant to Clause 4.1 and in accordance with the ECL, and such cash funding is
not used in full or the ECL subsequently terminates as a result of the expiry of the term of
the ECL, the Parties shall procure (without limitation, but exercising such rights as they have
in the relevant JVCo, and/or by instructing any director appointed to the relevant JVCo Board
by that Party to vote in favour of any relevant resolution) that the relevant JVCo promptly
returns such cash funding (or the cash funding surplus) to the Initial Investors in the amounts
and proportions as contributed by or on behalf of each Initial Investor in accordance with the
terms of the ECL.

If either Party fails to satisfy its obligations under the ECL (the “Defaulting Party”) without
prejudice to any other remedies that the other Party (as applicable) (the “Non-Defaulting
Party”) may have in respect of such failure:

4.4.1 the Non-Defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving
written notice to the Defaulting Party;

4.4.2 the Non-Defaulting Party may enforce the rights of EquityCo under the ECL, on
behalf of EquityCo;

4.4.3 the Defaulting Party shall, upon the Non-Defaulting Party’s written election,
immediately transfer, and shall procure that its Affiliates immediately transfer, to the
Non-Defaulting Party, or as it may direct, any shares or other securities directly or
indirectly held in EquityCo and/or any of the JVCos held by the Defaulting Party or
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such Affiliate (provided, however, that if the Defaulting Party transfers shares or other
securities directly or indirectly held in EquityCo and/or any of the JVCos to the Non-
Defaulting Party pursuant to this provision, the Non-Defaulting Party shall refund the
Defaulting Party any amounts previously funded by the Defaulting Party, subject to
a reasonable right of set- off to cover Losses reasonably related to the default); and

4.4.4  the Defaulting Party shall indemnify the Non-Defaulting Party for any Losses incurred
or suffered as a result of the Defaulting Party’s failure to satisfy its obligations under
the ECL, including Losses arising from any failure by EquityCo to implement the
Offer resulting directly or indirectly from the Defaulting Party’s failure to fund its
Equity Commitment.

5 Standstill

51 Each Party confirms that, having made reasonable enquiry, neither it nor any of its Concert
Parties is considered to hold any Target Securities Interests or have acquired Target
Securities Interests in the 12 months prior to the date of this Agreement. For the avoidance
of doubt the above representation and warranty is limited to the actual awareness of each
Party of the Target Securities Interests of its Concert Parties as at the date of this Agreement.

5.2 Except pursuant to the Offer, from the date of this Agreement until the Relevant Date, neither
Party shall and each Party shall procure that none of its Concert Parties (as from the date
referred to in Clause 5.5) nor (so far as it is within its powers) any JVCo shall:

52.1 either alone or acting in concert with others acquire or offer to acquire, or cause
another person to acquire or to offer to acquire Target Securities Interests; or

5.2.2  enter into an agreement or arrangement (whether conditional or otherwise) to do any
of the matters set out in Clause 5.2.1.

5.3 Except for transfers to JVCos in connection with the Offer, neither Party shall, and each
Party shall procure that none of its Concert Parties nor (so far as it is within its powers) any
JVCo shall, from the date of this Agreement until the earlier of: (i) the date on which such
Party withdraws from the Offer in accordance with Clause 9.1; and (ii) the Effective Date,
sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Target Securities Interests or enter into an
agreement or arrangement (whether conditional or otherwise) to do the same.

54 If the Parties announce that they are not proceeding with the Offer:

5.4.1 the Parties (including, once incorporated, any JVCo) will each comply with the terms
of any announcement made under the Tender Offer Regulations;

5.4.2 the Parties will co-operate to satisfy the requirements that the CNMV may impose
and

5.4.3 neither Party shall (and each Party shall procure that none of its Concert Parties
(including, so far as within its power, any JVCo) shall), either alone or acting in
concert with others acquire or offer to acquire, any Target Securities Interests or
enter into an agreement or arrangement as a result of which it or any person may
acquire any Target Securities Interests, in each case only to the extent that: (i) the
Parties are deemed to be Acting in Concert; or (ii) such action would result in the
other Party or EquityCo being required to make a mandatory offer for Target.

55 Each Party agrees that it shall take all actions within its power to serve (or procure the service
of) dealing stop notices to its Concert Parties as soon as practicable following the Filing Date
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6.2

6.3

(to the extent that any Concert Party has not already been sent a dealing stop notice prior
to that date).

Exclusivity and Syndication

Each Party warrants as at the date of this Agreement to the other that it is not a bidder,
acquirer, lender to any such person, or otherwise an interested party in, any other bid or
proposal in relation to the possible acquisition of some or all of the assets or share capital of
Target and that it is not otherwise a part of, nor has agreed formally or informally to take part
in or lend to, any form of partnership, joint venture, consortium or similar arrangement with/of
any other party or parties making or contemplating making an offer for some or all of the
assets or share capital of Target.

Each Party undertakes to the other Party, from the date of this Agreement:
6.2.1 until the earlier of:

0] the date on which such Party withdraws from the Offer in accordance with
Clause 9.1; and

(i) the date on which this Agreement terminates or is terminated in accordance
with Clause 9.3,

to work with the other Party on an exclusive basis to further the Offer; and

6.2.2 until such Party’s Relevant Date, to not, and to procure that none of its Affiliates nor
its or their Representatives (excluding any lender, proposed lender, professional
adviser, auditor or other representative not within such Party’s control) or any of its
Funds do not, except as part of the Offer, directly or indirectly be involved as an
equity investor or as the provider of any other form of financing or otherwise perform
any other substantive role or service (or enter into discussions or agree formally or
informally to do the same) in respect of any acquisition of Target or any other
transaction in relation to Target having a similar effect,

in each case, other than with the prior written consent of the other Party.

Without prejudice to any transfer rights agreed in the Shareholders’ Agreement, each Party
shall be entitled, from the date of this Agreement until the date of termination of this
Agreement, to syndicate (or agree to syndicate) any of its Initial Investors’ commitment to
fund its Equity Commitment under the ECL and/or any indirect interest held by any Investor
or Affiliate of any Investor in Amber JVCo securities, (as applicable, the “Syndication
Interests”), to a Potential Syndicatee, in each case, without the consent of any other Party
(a “Permitted Syndication”, and such syndicatee, a “Permitted Syndicatee”), provided
that:

6.3.1  no syndication of (or agreement to syndicate) any indirect interest in Amber JVCo
securities is permitted to any Restricted Syndicatee;

6.3.2 such Party or an Affiliate of such Party retains all voting and other control rights
(including all rights exercisable by such Party (or on its behalf) on the board of Amber
JVCo or such other board as may control the Amber JVCo Group from time to time,
or as an indirect shareholder in Amber JVCo) in connection with such Syndication
Interests and such Syndication Interests are held by the Permitted Syndicatee
indirectly in a fund or other vehicle managed or controlled by an Affiliate of such
Party;
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6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

any Permitted Syndicatee to whom any Initial Investor syndicates any part of such
Initial Investor’s commitment to fund its Equity Commitment under the ECL shall
make any contribution of cash pursuant to such commitment on the Investment Date
to Amber JVCo indirectly and shall in no event acquire any direct interest in Amber
JVCo securities;

the TDR Fund and its respective Affiliates maintain direct economic ownership of
(and do not syndicate pursuant to any Permitted Syndication in respect of) at least
50.01 per cent. of its Initial Investment;

the 1ISQ Funds and their respective Affiliates maintain direct economic ownership of
(and do not syndicate pursuant to any Permitted Syndication in respect of) at least
50.01 per cent. of its Initial Investment;

the relevant Party complies with the terms of Clause 6.4 (and procures the same in
respect of any Potential Syndicatee); and

each relevant Initial Investor remains primarily responsible in respect of its full Equity
Commitment given under the ECL at the Filing Date.

6.4 In connection with any Permitted Syndication:

6.4.1 each Party may approach any person pursuant to Clause 6.3, provided that such
person is a Potential Syndicatee;
6.42 each Party shall be entitled to approach and discuss the Offer with any of their
respective Potential Syndicatees, provided that:
0] such Potential Syndicatee shall have executed:
€) a non-disclosure agreement with customary provisions regarding the
use of Confidential Information and in accordance with any
applicable requirement of the Tender Offer Regulations and Market
Abuse Regulation (596/2014); and

(b) applicable hold harmless letters prior to the disclosure to it of any
reports prepared in connection with the Offer by advisers to the
Parties;

(i) any disclosure of Confidential Information to a Potential Syndicatee pursuant
to this Clause 6 is made in accordance with the terms of Clause 12;

(iii) the Potential Syndicatee provides customary ‘know your customer’ and anti-
money laundering information and documents relating to itself as reasonably
requested by the Parties; and

(iv) the Parties comply with any relevant provisions of the Tender Offer
Regulations applicable to any equity syndication in an Offer Period;

6.4.3 following completion of any Permitted Syndication, each Permitted Syndicatee shall
have information rights limited to receipt of:

0] the annual audited consolidated financial statements of the Amber JVCo
Group, within 180 days after the accounting period to which they relate, and
guarterly consolidated financial statements of the Amber JVCo Group, within
60 days after the quarter to which they relate; and
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6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

(i) other information in relation to the Amber JVCo Group to the extent approved
by the Offer Committee or the EquityCo Board upon request by either Party
(or its Offer Committee Member), acting reasonably and provided that the
member of the EquityCo Board or Offer Committee Member of the TDR Fund
or the ISQ Funds (as applicable) shall not be permitted to vote in respect of
such request;

each Party shall keep the other Party reasonably informed of the progress in respect
of any Permitted Syndication;

each Party shall carry out any Permitted Syndication in compliance with the Tender
Offer Regulations, any rulings, requests or requirements of the CNMV and all other
applicable laws and regulations (including the Market Abuse Regulation (596/2014),
Companies Act UK, Companies Act Spain, the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000, the Financial Services Act 2012 and the Securities Market Act Spain); and

neither Party shall carry out any Permitted Syndication prior to the Effective Date, if
such Permitted Syndication would require a material change to be made to, or
supplement to be issued in respect of, the relevant documentation required to
implement the Offer including, without limitation, a supplement to the Offer
Prospectus.

6.5 Except in relation to any Permitted Syndication, each Party hereby undertakes that it will not,
and shall procure that its Affiliates will not, prior to the Effective Date, directly or indirectly
syndicate, assign or transfer (or agree to syndicate, assign or transfer) any right or interest
granted to each such Party under this Agreement in relation to the Offer, including any
interest in EquityCo and/or any other JVCo, to any actual or potential additional co-investor
for it to participate in the Offer together with such Party or its Affiliates without the prior written
consent of the other Party. Any such syndication, assignment or transfer (or agreement
thereof) after the Effective Date shall be subject to the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement.

7 Warranties, Undertakings and Acknowledgements

7.1 Each Party warrants to the other Party that:

7.1.1 it has the requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and there is no
agreement, commitment or other understanding that:
® would preclude or restrict such Party from entering into and performing its
obligations under this Agreement or any agreement contemplated by this
Agreement to be entered into by such Party, including the making of the Offer
and consummation of a transaction if successful; or
(i) would require any Party to allow any other person to elect to participate in
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
7.1.2 this Agreement when executed will constitute valid, binding and enforceable
obligations of such Party;
7.1.3 it has obtained the necessary internal approvals required to enter into this
Agreement;
7.1.4 it has not acquired Target Securities Interests in the 12 months prior to the date of
this Agreement;
A51422744
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7.2

7.3

8.2

8.3

8.4

7.1.5 it is not in possession of material non-public information pursuant to the Market
Abuse Regulation (596/2014); and

7.1.6 it has taken legal advice as to the implications of the Tender Offer Regulations as it
applies to the Offer.

Each Party undertakes, in connection with the Offer, to:

7.21 comply with, to procure that its Representatives and Affiliates under its control
comply with, and to otherwise direct its Affiliates and Representatives not under its
control to comply with:

0] the Tender Offer Regulations and/or any rulings, requests or requirements of
the CNMV; and

(i) with all other applicable laws and regulations (including the Market Abuse
Regulation (596/2014), Companies Act UK, Companies Act Spain, the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the Financial Services Act 2012
and the Securities Market Act Spain); and

7.2.2  procure (so far as within its power) that each JVCo complies with the laws and
regulations referred to in Clause 7.2.

Each Party acknowledges that notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
nothing in this Agreement shall require either Party to act or refrain from acting in a manner
which would cause it or its Affiliates to be in breach of any applicable law or regulation or the
Tender Offer Regulations.

Indemnification

Subject to Clause 8.2, in respect of any liability owed to any third party under any
Indemnification Agreement (including any Losses suffered or incurred in connection with
such liability) (“Indemnification Agreement Liability”), if one of the Parties (or its Affiliates
(excluding members of the Amber JVCo Group)) (the “Payor”) shall have paid to such third
party/ies less than their Relevant Proportion of and the other Party (or its Affiliates (excluding
members of the Amber JVCo Group)) (the “Payee”) shall have paid to such third party/ies
more than their Relevant Proportion, the Payor shall pay to the Payee such amount as shall
be required so that after taking account of such payment the Payor and the Payee shall have
borne their respective Relevant Proportions of the Indemnification Agreement Liability.

The Payee shall not be entitled to receive any amounts from the Payor pursuant to Clause
8.1 if the Indemnification Agreement Liability directly results from the fraud, wilful default or
negligence of the Payee, or the breach by the Payee of its obligations to any such third party
thereunder, in each case as determined by a court or arbitral tribunal of competent
jurisdiction in a final and non-appealable order (or pursuant to a settlement agreement in
relation thereto).

The Payor shall pay any amount payable pursuant to Clause 8.1 on or before the date falling
30 days after the same becomes due and payable.

All payments made by the Payor in respect of any Indemnification Agreement Liability shall
be made in full without set-off or counterclaim whatsoever and without any tax deduction. If
a tax deduction is required by law to be made by the Payor, the amount of the payment due
from the Payor shall be increased to an amount which (after making any tax deduction)
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leaves an amount equal to the payment which would have been due if no tax deduction had
been required.

9 Withdrawal and Termination

9.1 Prior to the Filing Date, either Party may withdraw from the Offer and terminate this
Agreement upon giving written notice to the other Party. Each Party will also notify the other
Party promptly if its investment committee or equivalent approving body ceases to be
supportive of the Offer, and the other Parties may deem such notice to constitute a notice of
withdrawal from the Offer under this Clause 9.1.

9.2 If a Party withdraws from the Offer in accordance with Clause 9.1 above:

9.2.1  such departing Party (the “Departing Party”) shall cease to have any rights under
this Agreement but shall remain subject to the applicable obligations set out in
Clauses 1 (Definitions and Interpretation), 5 (Standstill), 6 (Exclusivity and
Syndication), 10 (Transaction Costs), 13 (Assignment and Other Dealings), 14
(Amendments and Waivers), 15 (Severability) and 18 (Governing Law and
Jurisdiction); and

9.2.2 the remaining Party (the “Remaining Party”) shall be entitled to progress and
complete the Offer without the involvement of the Departing Party.

9.3 Save for the obligations set out in Clauses 1 (Definitions and Interpretation), 5 (Standstill), 6
(Exclusivity and Syndication), 7 (Warranties, Undertakings and Acknowledgements), 8
(Indemnification), 9 (Withdrawal and Termination), 10 (Transaction Costs), 13 (Assignment
and Other Dealings), 14 (Amendments and Waivers), 15 (Severability) and 18 (Governing
Law and Jurisdiction), and to the accrued rights of either Party, which shall each survive
termination of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall terminate upon the
earliest of the following to occur of:

9.3.1 the Effective Date;
9.3.2 the CNMV does not authorise the Offer;

9.3.3 following the Filing Date, (i) the Parties agree, subject to Tender Offer Regulations,
on the withdrawal of the Offer, or (ii) the Offer conditions are neither satisfied nor
waived on time rendering the Offer ineffective;

9.3.4 21 September 2023, if the Offer Prospectus has not been filed with the CNMV
by such date; and

9.3.5 the Parties agreeing in writing to terminate this Agreement.

10 Transaction Costs

10.1 Joint Bid Costs, 1ISQ Costs and/or TDR Costs shall only be incurred in accordance with the
Budget or otherwise with the prior agreement of the Parties and the Budget may not be
amended without the prior approval of the Parties.

10.2 If the Offer is completed, the JVCos will pay all Joint Bid Costs in accordance with Clause
10.3 (as applicable). Each Party will, to the extent required, pay any Joint Bid Costs payable
prior to the Effective Date pro rata in the Relevant Proportions by way of loan to any JVCo
or such other method as the Parties may agree.
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

11
111

11.2

BidCo will pay any Joint Bid Costs related to the Transaction and FinCo will pay any Joint
Bid Costs related to the Financing, in each case as contemplated by the Structure Paper.

Subject to Clause 11, notwithstanding the terms of any Engagement Letter between any
Party or any JVCo, on one hand, and any adviser, on the other hand, and irrespective of the
proportions in which any adviser seeks to recover or actually recovers from the Party or any
one of them, if the Offer is not completed all Joint Bid Costs will be paid by each Party pro
rata in the Relevant Proportions and, to the extent necessary, each Party shall take all such
steps as may be necessary to give effect to such agreed proportionate sharing of liability
(including, if required, contributing its share of Joint Bid Costs to any JVCo).

Any costs, fees and expenses incurred by a Party in connection with the Offer without the
prior written approval of the other Party shall be for that Party’s account.

Subject to Clause 10.7 below, if a Party becomes a Departing Party, the Departing Party will
only be responsible for the Joint Bid Costs which are accrued up to the date of withdrawal
(whether or not by then invoiced) pro rata to its Relevant Proportion (immediately prior to
such withdrawal) or as otherwise agreed between the Parties. Any Departing Party will pay
such share of the Joint Bid Costs on demand from time to time following presentation to such
Party of each relevant invoice. Subject to the following sentence, a Departing Party shall not
be responsible for any “tail fees” or similar of any advisers to or on behalf of any JVCo and/or
any of the Parties providing financial advisory services which are incurred in connection with
the Offer or otherwise. If any Party or their respective Affiliates (acting alone outside the
scope of this Agreement) takes any action after the termination of the appointment of any
such advisers which results in any “tail fees” or similar becoming payable to such adviser
then such Party alone shall be liable in full for the payment of such fees.

If a Remaining Party (or any of its Affiliates) completes the acquisition of, or any similar
transaction involving, Target or a controlling interest in its business, either alone or by jointly
pursuing it with another person, then a Departing Party shall be reimbursed by such
Remaining Party for all Joint Bid Costs previously paid by the Departing Party (in accordance
with Clause 10.6) after its date of withdrawal in accordance with Clause 10.1, provided such
acquisition is completed within 12 months of the Departing Party’s withdrawal.

Engagement and Reports and Reliance

Each Party acknowledges that, as at the date of this Agreement, either Party or one of their

Affiliates have entered into Engagement Letters and have the benefit of all Reports and
Reliance Letters. On or prior to the Effective Date, each Party shall use reasonable
endeavours to procure that the Engagement Letters and any rights it or any of its Affiliates
may have pursuant to the Report and Reliance Letters are novated and extended to, with
effect from not later than immediately prior to the Effective Date, to EquityCo and/or any of
the other JVCos, such that on or following the Effective Date, EquityCo and/or any of the
other JVCos shall be entitled to make a claim against each adviser under an Engagement
Letter or a Report and Reliance Letter and any payment of fees and expenses shall either
be made by: (i) EquityCo and/or any of the other JVCaos; or (ii) either Party (who shall on-
charge EquityCo and/or any of the other JVCos).

To the extent the rights and obligations of either Party or one of their Affiliates pursuant to an
Engagement Letter or a Report and Reliance Letter are not novated to EquityCo and/or any
of the other JVCos, until such time as a particular Engagement Letter or a Report and
Reliance Letter is so novated:
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11.2.1 each Party shall, and shall procure any of its Affiliates shall, take all such action as
is reasonably requested by EquityCo, any of the other JVCos and/or the other Party
to make recovery under such Engagement Letter or a Report and Reliance Letter
and shall account to EquityCo and/or any of the other JVCos for any amounts so
recovered (and shall hold such amounts on trust for EquityCo and/or any of the other
JVCos) of any claim or right in respect of such Engagement Letter or Report and
Reliance Letter; and

11.2.2 EquityCo and/or any of the other JVCos shall indemnify and hold harmless (on a
continuing basis) each Party and each of its Affiliates that is a party to an
Engagement Letter from and against (and to pay on demand an amount equal to)
any and all Losses incurred or suffered in connection with such Engagement Letter,
provided that such Party acts in accordance with the terms of the Engagement Letter.

12 Confidentiality and Announcements

12.1 Each Party shall, and shall procure that its Affiliates to whom it discloses Confidential
Information shall, treat as strictly confidential all Confidential Information.

12.2 Each Party acknowledges that a copy of this Agreement will be disclosed as part of the
information included in the Offer Prospectus.

12.3 Each Party acknowledges, and shall inform its Affiliates to whom it discloses Confidential
Information, that some or all of the Confidential Information may be information which is not
public or otherwise generally available and is of a kind such that a person who has that
information would be prohibited or restricted from using it to deal in the securities of Target
under the Market Abuse Regulation, Part V Criminal Justice Act 1993, Securities Market Act
Spain, the Criminal Code Spain or other applicable insider dealing, market abuse or similar
laws.

12.4 Subject to Clauses 12.5 to 12.6, each Party hereby undertakes to the other Party that it shall
not, and shall procure that its Affiliates to whom it discloses Confidential Information shall
not, except with the prior written consent of the Parties, make use of (save for performing its
obligations under this Agreement) or disclose to any person any Confidential Information.

12.5 Each Party may disclose Confidential Information:
12,51 toits Representatives and its Affiliates;

12.5.2 to any professional adviser to the extent that such person strictly needs access to
that Confidential Information for the purpose of evaluating, negotiating, advising
upon or implementing the Offer, provided that such Party:

® informs such person that the Confidential Information is confidential and of
the existence and terms of this Clause 12; and

(i) procures that any such person complies with the provisions of this Clause 12
as if they were a party to them; and

12.5.3 if and to the extent required by:

0] any order, direction or ruling of any court of competent jurisdiction,
governmental, regulatory or supervisory body;

(i) the laws or regulation of any country with jurisdiction over the affairs of the
relevant Party; or
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12.6

13
131

13.2

14

14.1

14.2

15

16

(iii) any securities exchange, listing authority or any regulatory or supervisory
body (including the CNMV) provided that (to the extent permitted by law) it
consults with the other Party as to the contents of such disclosure and, in
any event, discloses only the minimum information necessary in order to
satisfy such requirement.

Clauses 12.1 and 12.4 will not apply to Confidential Information which:
12.6.1 at the time of supply is in the public domain;

12.6.2 subsequently comes into the public domain otherwise than as a result of the breach
of this Agreement;

126.3 a Party can establish to the reasonable satisfaction of the other Party, is
independently developed by such Party, its Affiliates, Representatives or
professional advisers; or

12.6.4 aParty can establish to the reasonable satisfaction of the other Party that it is already
in its lawful possession or that of any of its Affiliates or professional advisers and is
free from any obligation of secrecy or confidence or it subsequently comes lawfully
into a Party’s possession or that of any of its Affiliates or professional advisers from
a third party source which source does not have any obligation of confidentiality in
relation to such Confidential Information.

Assignment and Other Dealings

This Agreement is personal to the Parties and neither Party shall assign, transfer, mortgage,
charge, subcontract, declare a trust over or deal in any other manner with any of its rights
and obligations under this Agreement.

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be deemed to, establish any partnership
between either Party, constitute either Party as the agent of the other, or authorise either
Party to make or enter into any commitments for or on behalf of any other.

Amendments and Waivers

No amendment to, or waiver of any of the provisions of, this Agreement shall be effective
unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of each of the Parties.

No delay or omission by any party in exercising any right or remedy provided by law or under
this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of such right or remedy.
Severability

If any provision in this Agreement shall be held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, in
whole or in part, under any enactment or rule of law or otherwise, such provision (or part)
shall to that extent be deemed not to form part of this Agreement but the legality, validity and
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected.

Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the Parties to it on
separate counterparts and each such counterpart shall constitute an original of this
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17

18
18.1

18.2

Agreement but all of which together constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement
shall not be effective until each Party has executed at least one counterpart.

Third party rights

The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not apply to this Agreement and no
person who is not a party to this Agreement may enforce any provision of it.

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Agreement and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it
(including any non-contractual obligations arising out of the negotiation of the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement) are governed by and shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of England and Wales.

The Parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England shall have exclusive jurisdiction to
settle any dispute or claim that arises out of or in connection with this Agreement (including
a dispute relating to any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with either
this Agreement or the negotiation of the transaction contemplated by this Agreement).
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Schedule 1
Parties

Part A—TDR Fund

1. TDR Capital V L.P., an English limited partnership, as constituted from time to time, with
registered number LP022040 having its principal place of business at 20 Bentinck Street,
London W1U 2EU

Part B — 1SQ Funds

1. ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (UST), LP, a Cayman Islands limited partnership, whose
registered office is at c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2. ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (USTE), LP, a Cayman Islands limited partnership, whose
registered office is at c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

3. ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund lll, LP, a Cayman Islands limited partnership, whose
registered office is at c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

4, ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (EU), LP, a special limited partnership (société en
commandite spéciale), whose registered office is at 6, rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453
Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Ab1422744
21



Schedule 2
Term Sheet
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Project Amber

Term Sheet

This non-binding term sheet summarises the principal terms on which TDR Capital General Partner V Limited acting in its capacity as general partner of the
TDR Fund (“TDR”) and 1SQ Global Fund Il GP, LLC acting in its capacity as general partner of various ISQ Funds (“ISQ”) (each an “Investor” and together
the “Investors™) propose to hold interests in Amber JVCo in connection with the proposed acquisition of the company code-named “Amber” (the
“Transaction”), and which the Investors have agreed to follow in the negotiation and conclusion of a binding shareholders’ agreement to govern the
arrangements relating to their interests in Amber JVCo (and together with its subsidiary undertakings, the “Amber JVCo Group”) (the “Shareholders’
Agreement”).

Terms used but not defined in this document shall have the meanings given to such terms in the joint bid agreement to be entered into between TDR and I1ISQ
in relation to the Transaction (the “Joint Bid Agreement”).

Provision Description of Terms

General Structure Amber JVCo will be an English private limited company tax resident in England.

The structuring of the Transaction and nature of the instruments to be subscribed by the Investors will be determined in
accordance with tax and operational advice to be obtained by the Investors.

Subject to legal and tax advice, each Investor will fund their Equity Commitment by way of a subscription for the same class and
type of securities in Amber JVCo.

ISQ Holding ISQ will hold its interest in Amber JVCo through two entities: one incorporated in the United Kingdom (“ISQ UK Shareholder”)
Structure and the other incorporated in the Cayman Islands (“ISQ Cl Shareholder”).

Any provision which is expressed to bind the ISQ UK Shareholder and the ISQ CI Shareholder shall, save where inconsistent
with the context, bind each of them severally and not jointly and severally.

All rights and obligations of the ISQ CI Shareholder shall be exercised by the ISQ UK Shareholder acting on behalf of the ISQ CI
Shareholder. For the avoidance of doubt, this includes any consents required to be given by the ISQ CI Shareholder.

Further Funding There shall be no obligation on the Investors to provide further funding to the Amber JVCo Group after Completion.

Board Composition The Amber JVCo board (the “Amber JVCo Board”) will consist of at least 8 directors.

A51453788



Provision Description of Terms

Each Investor shall have the right to appoint and remove up to four directors (each, an “Investor Director”) or such other
greater number of directors as agreed between the Investors (provided that each Investor shall be entitled to four board votes,
irrespective of the number of Investor Directors they have appointed).

The Investors also expect that the Amber JVCo Group will establish a board which will be responsible for the operation and
management of Amber (the “Operational Board”). The Operational Board is expected to be established post-Completion
following discussion with the CEO of Amber and is expected to comprise of senior management of Amber and up to four
Investor Directors for each Investor. Voting and quorum of the Operational Board will be as per the Amber JVCo Board (see
below), save that certain matters may be reserved to the Amber JVCo Board and the positive vote of each Investor is required
for any matter to be resolved at the Operational Board.

Amber JVCo Board meetings will only be quorate if at least one Investor Director representing each Investor is present.

Amber JVCo Board resolutions will be passed by a simple majority of the Amber JVCo Board (with each Investor having a total
of four votes), except for resolutions with respect to the Reserved Matters (as defined below), for which any resolution to be
passed by the Amber JVCo Board must include the approval of at least one Investor Director appointed by each of the
Investors. Any Investor Director shall be entitled to exercise the votes of all Investor Directors appointed by their respective
Investor.

Each Investor shall have the right to have equal representation on each committee, and the boards or committees of any
subsidiary.

The Shareholders’ Agreement will contain customary sunset provisions which reduce the number of Investor Directors which an
Investor can appoint if the equity interest in Amber JVCo held by such Investor is reduced.

Delegation of The Investors shall agree a policy for the delegation of authority from the Amber JVCo Board to the management team of Amber
Authority for the operational day-to-day management of the business, subject always to the Reserved Matters (as defined below).
Reserved Matters The Shareholders’ Agreement shall include a customary list of “reserved matters” in respect of the Amber JVCo Group (including

those set out in Appendix 1) that will require the prior written consent of each of the Investors (the “Reserved Matters”).

The Shareholders’ Agreement will contain customary sunset provisions which reduce the number of Reserved Matters which will
require the prior written consent of each of the Investors if the equity interest in Amber JVCo held by such Investor is reduced.
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Provision Description of Terms

Positive Covenants The Shareholders’ Agreement shall include a customary list of positive covenants (including those set forth in Appendix 2) that
each Amber JVCo Group company shall be required to comply with and management shall be required to procure compliance
with such covenants.

Deadlock A deadlock will arise if either:
0] the Amber JVCo Board does not pass a resolution put to it two or more times; or
(ii) two or more consecutive Amber JVCo Board meetings have been adjourned because a quorum is not present.

If a deadlock arises, the relevant matter shall be escalated to Gary Lindsay in the case of TDR and Mohamed El Gazzar in the
case of ISQ.

If following escalation, the Investors they cannot come to a mutually satisfactory resolution within 10 business days of the matter
being put to them, the Amber JVCo Group’s business will carry on in the ordinary course and the status quo ante shall prevail.

For the avoidance of doubt, these deadlock provisions shall only apply to disagreements as between the Investors.

Information rights Amber JVCo will provide each Investor with:

(i) annual audited accounts;

(i) six-monthly reporting (to include a half-year forecast and presentation from the Amber JVCo Board);
(i) quarterly reporting (to include a quarterly report from Amber JVCo);

(iv) monthly reporting;

(v) any updates to, or deviations from, the business plan;

(vi) all materials provided to any Amber JVCo Board;

(vii)  details and copies of all material interactions with regulators regarding the Amber JVCo Group or issues material to the
Amber JVCo Group;

(viii)  any information disclosed to the lenders under the Financing Documents (as defined below);
(ix) any information required by either Investor in relation to environmental, social or governance matters; and

x) other information (to include minutes of any Amber JVCo Board meetings, as well as any other information reasonably
requested by an Investor from time to time).
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Provision Description of Terms

Anti-Dilution / Pre- An issue of new equity or debt securities in any Amber JVCo Group company will be a Reserved Matter (as defined below)
emption Rights (unless a default event has occurred).

Each Investor will have the right to participate on an issue of new securities in cash pro rata to their holding of shares, with
customary exceptions (e.g. intra-group, M&A consideration, management incentive plans etc.).

Default Event If there is either a prospective or an actual event of default under the Amber JVCo Group’s third party financing documents (the
“Financing Documents”) or another immediate cash need to solve for a credit issue in respect of the Amber JVCo Group, a
default event shall be deemed to have occurred.

Following a default event, either Investor shall be entitled to require that new equity is issued without the consent of the other.
Any such issue shall provide for a 20 business day catch period for the other party and shall otherwise comply with the
procedures for the issue of new equity.

Any new equity must be issued at fair market value, as agreed between the Investors or, failing agreement, as determined by an
independent accountant.

Transfer Restrictions | The transfer restrictions below (including under right of first offer, drag and tag) shall be subject to customary “permitted transfer
exceptions (including for the avoidance of doubt transfers to affiliates).

Lock-Up Period
Neither Investor shall be permitted to dispose of any equity or debt interests in the Amber JVCo Group without the consent of
the other for two years from Completion (the “Lock-Up Period”).

Following Lock-Up Period

All sales by an Investor shall be subject to ROFO, drag and tag as set out below.

Right of First Offer Prior to any sale process for any number, whether in whole or in part, of the shares held by an Investor (the “Sale Shares”),
(“ROFQ") such selling Investor shall inform the other Investor in writing and specify the price per share at which they are willing to sell (the
“ROFO Price”).

The non-selling Investor shall have two months to submit a binding fully financed offer for all of the selling Investor’s Sale
Shares (the “ROFO Offer”).

If the ROFO Offer is for a price greater than or equal to the ROFO Price, the selling Investor shall be required sell its Sale
Shares to the non-selling Investor.
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Provision

Description of Terms

If the ROFO is for a price less than the ROFO Price, the selling Investor can either accept this offer or launch a market exercise,
in which the non-selling Investor may also participate, join in any discussions regarding the process and other bidders and will
have the right to be kept informed of progress. If the market exercise does not result in a price greater than or equal to the
ROFO Price, the selling Investor cannot sell its Sale Shares for a period of twelve months following the conclusion of the failed
ROFO process.

Drag Along Rights

Following the second anniversary of Completion, subject to completion of the ROFO process, an Investor which is selling all of
its interests in the Amber JVCo Group to a bona fide third party can drag the other Investor, provided that the consideration
received by the dragged Investor would represent a multiple of money invested for the dragged Investor of at least 3.0x.

For the avoidance of doubt, ISQ may only exercise the drag along rights described above if both the ISQ UK Shareholder and
the ISQ CI Shareholder are selling their respective interests in the Amber JVCo Group.

The terms of the drag-along sale shall be the same price per security and on the same terms (including as to type of
consideration), subject to the following.

The Investor being dragged shall (i) receive cash or liquid securities as consideration for its Amber JVCo Group securities, and
(i) be required to give the same indemnities, the same warranties, the same non-solicitation covenants (but not non-compete
covenants) and place the same amount of proceeds in escrow as the dragging Investor.

Tag Along Rights

The non-selling Investor shall have pro rata tag along rights on any sale of shares by the selling Investor.

Drag and Tag Costs

The Shareholders’ Agreement will contain customary provisions relating to the treatment of any costs incurred by Amber
JVColthe Investors in connection with any drag-along/tag-along sales.

IPO Same treatment as sales of shares in that not permissible during the Lock-Up Period unless the Investors otherwise agree.
Following the fifth anniversary of Completion, either Investor can initiate an IPO.
No Investor shall be obliged to sell down as part of the IPO.
Each Investor to have the option to tag along and sell secondary shares in the IPO in proportion to its respective shareholding.
Customary IPO co-operation and lock up language to be included.
Each Investor to have equivalent registration rights in respect of the IPO.
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Provision Description of Terms

Notification / All approaches to be disclosed ASAP to the Amber JVCo Board/the Investors. Any appointment of advisers to be a Reserved
Information Rights Matter.
on Exit Investors to have rights to receive any and all information provided to potential purchasers.

Disclosure of all customary financial, technical and legal information to potential bidders permitted by the Amber JVCo Group
and/or either Investor, provided that the recipients have entered into confidentiality undertakings for the benefit of the Amber
JVCo Group in a customary form.

Management The Investors shall, between them, agree on the terms and the structure of the management incentive plan following
incentive plan Completion, which will dilute each Investor on a pro rata basis.

Costs, Fees and Amber JVCo to pay (or procure that another Amber JVCo Group company pays) certain costs, fees and expenses to each
Expenses Investor on a pro rata basis (in respect of fees only and not costs or expenses) and subject to an overall cap to be agreed

between the Investors.

Other The governing law of the transaction documents will be English law.

Any costs to be borne by the Amber JVCo Group (including each Investor’s costs in relation to negotiating the consortium
arrangements) will be agreed in accordance with the Joint Bid Agreement.
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Appendix 1
Reserved Matters

No Amber JVCo Group company shall take any of the following actions without the prior written consent of each of the Investors:

1. Alter its constitutional documents.

2. Change the name of any Amber JVCo Group company.

3. Adopt its annual budget and/or business plan, or vary the existing budget/business plan, or exceed the capex provided for in any business plan by
more than a percentage threshold to be agreed between the Investors.

4, Allot or issue any shares or other debt or equity securities or grant to any person any option or right to call for the issue of any shares or other
securities (save to another Amber JVCo Group company) other than in accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement or articles, repurchase or
redeem any debt or equity securities, or effect any other variation to its issued share capital, share premium account, or its capital structure, or the
rights attaching to any equity or debt securities or capitalize any reserves or reduced the amount standing to the credit of any reserve.

5. Recommend, declare or pay a dividend or other distribution to any person other than another Amber JVCo Group company.

6. Create or issue or allow to come into being any security interest (other than a lien on assets arising by operation of law in the ordinary course of
business and securing sums not more than 30 days overdue or as envisaged by the Financing Documents) over any part of its property or assets
or create or issue any debenture or debenture stock.

7. Appoint or remove (other than as an alternate pursuant to the relevant group company'’s articles) a person as a director of an Amber JVCo Group
company (other than in accordance with the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement and the articles of the relevant Amber JVCo Group company).

8. Appoint (except for the reappointment of its existing auditors) or remove its auditors, adopt any new accounting policy, make any material
changes to any material accounting policies or change its accounting reference date, in each case save as required to comply with law or a new
accounting standard.

9. Adopt the audited accounts of Amber JVCo and the audited consolidated accounts of the Amber JVCo Group.

10. Acquire an interest (whether on its own behalf or as a nominee) in the share, loan capital or instruments convertible into the share capital of any
company or other legal entity or its business or assets or enter into any formal discussions or negotiations in connection therewith.
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11.

Whether by a single transaction or by a series of transactions: (a) acquire, sell, transfer or enter into an agreement for the acquisition, sale,
transfer, surrender or other disposition of any assets having a book or market value in excess of a € threshold to be agreed between the Investors
or acquire or enter into an agreement for the acquisition of any assets having a book or market value in excess of a € threshold to be agreed
between the Investors (except, in each case, where already identified and agreed as part of the budget sign off from time to time); or (b) enter
into, materially vary or terminate any lease, licence, tenancy or similar arrangement where the rental and all other payments under it exceeds a €
threshold per annum to be agreed between the Investors.

12.

Acquire or dispose of any freehold or leasehold property, grant or surrender a lease in respect of such property or take or omit to take any action
which could prejudice the continuation of any such lease.

13.

Make a material variation to, or waive a condition of, the Financing Documents, or voluntarily pre-pay any sums lent under the Financing
Documents or refinance any such indebtedness, or enter into formal discussions or negotiations in connection thereto.

14.

Except for any debt facilities entered into in connection with the Offer: (a) borrow any money or obtain credit (other than normal trade credit); (b)
make any other arrangement having a similar effect (including, without limitation, debt factoring, invoice discounting, hire purchase, equipment
leasing, conditional or credit sales, or any off balance sheet borrowings); or (c) materially vary the terms of any credit arrangement, in each case,
with any person other than an Amber JVCo Group company, if the aggregate amount outstanding from time to time (including sums attributable to
capital under the then current accounting practice) exceeds a € threshold to be agreed between the Investors.

15.

Make, increase or extend a loan or advance exceeding a € threshold to be agreed between the Investors in aggregate to any person (including
any loan and advance to a person connected with that person) (excluding (i) any other Amber JVCo Group company, (ii) trade credit in the
ordinary course of trading, or (iii) advances made to employees against expenses properly incurred by them on an Amber JVCo Group company’s
behalf), or acquire any indebtedness owed by any Amber JVCo Group company or other third party to any lender.

16.

Give, extend or increase any liability a guarantee or indemnity, other than as required pursuant to the Financing Documents or otherwise in the
ordinary course of business.

17.

Save in accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement, approve or register the transfer (whether legal or beneficial) of any shares in its capital or
the price at which such transfer occurs, sell, liquidate or otherwise dispose of any subsidiary or any interest therein, or all or part of its assets,
amalgamate, merge or demerge with any company or concern or otherwise effect any corporate restructuring or group reorganisation.

18.

Carry on part of an Amber JVCo Group company’s business other than through an Amber JVCo Group company or become or cease to be party
to, or vary materially the terms of participation in, a partnership, joint venture, consortium, or any other incorporated or unincorporated association
(except for trade associations and existing partnerships and joint ventures of Amber or its subsidiaries in place as at Completion).
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19. Enter into, modify, waive, fail to enforce or terminate (or give notice to terminate or commit a material or persistent breach of) any material
contract (which shall include contracts which: (i) have a net impact on Amber JVCo'’s consolidated EBITDA of a € threshold to be agreed between
the Investors / will involve a payment or commitment by the Amber JVCo Group in excess of a € threshold to be agreed between the Investors or
more; (ii) are outside the ordinary course of the Amber JVCo Group’s business; (iii) is not terminable by the Amber JVCo Group on less than 12
months’ notice; or (iv) is otherwise material).

20. Commence, discontinue or settle any dispute, litigation or arbitration proceedings where the amount claimed (either by or against it) together with
any costs incurred (or likely to be incurred) by it is in excess of a € threshold (exclusive of VAT) to be agreed between the Investors.

21. Either (i) propose any resolution to place itself or any other Amber JVCo Group company in voluntary liquidation or administration or receivership
or relating to a composition with its creditors generally, (i) make a proposal for a voluntary arrangement under section 1 of the Insolvency Act
1986 in respect of any Amber JVCo Group company, or obtain a compromise or arrangement under Part 26 of the Act in respect of any Amber
JVCo Group company or (iii) do anything similar or analogous to the matters described in (i) or (ii) above.

22. Adopt, or materially amend the terms of, any management incentive plan or other bonus, profit sharing, share option or other incentive scheme
(including related issues or grants of equity and equity-linked securities).

23. Enter into, materially vary the terms of, terminate or give a board or other consent or approval in relation to, a related party transaction with a
senior manager or an Investor and/or its affiliates.

24, Appointment, dismissal, terms of employment (and any material variation thereto) and remuneration (including bonus and other incentive
payments) of the Amber JVCo Group CEO, COO, CFO and other key management.

25. Material changes to the nature, geographical area, and strategy of any Amber JVCo Group company’s business, including carrying on a new
business.

26. Engage any professional advisers (i) with aggregate annual fees in excess of a € threshold to be agreed between the Investors (other than
advisers in relation to matters within the ordinary course of its business) or (ii) in connection with an Exit.

27. Apply for, allow to lapse or materially amend a regulatory approval or licence in any jurisdiction (other than renewals of any approvals or licences
in the ordinary course of business).

28. Make any material alteration to any insurance policy held by any Amber JVCo Group company.

29. Grant or enter into any licence, agreement or arrangement concerning any part of the name or trading names of any Amber JVCo Group
company or the goodwill attaching to the same or any other part of an Amber JVCo Group company'’s intellectual property.
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30. Make any political or charitable contribution or any other gift of whatsoever nature.
31. Make an announcement in relation to any of the actions described in this Appendix 1 or in relation to a proposal to take any such action.
32. Approve or agree to do any of the matters listed in this Appendix 1.
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Appendix 2
Conduct of Business — Positive Covenants

Each Amber JVCo Group company shall:

1.

Procure that:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

any expansion, development or evolution of the business of the Amber JVCo Group, as carried on as at the date of the Shareholders’
Agreement, is effected only through Amber JVCo Group companies;

the business of the Amber JVCo Group is conducted responsibly in accordance with principles of good corporate governance, best
practice and high ethical standards and with due consideration to the reputation of the Amber JVCo Group and the Investors;

introduce and maintain effective and appropriate control systems in relation to the financial, accounting and record-keeping functions of
the Amber JVCo Group; and

it promptly adopts and implements any corporate social responsibility, environmental or anti-corruption policies which either Investor may
require from time to time.

Keep in force and maintain at all times the policies referred to below or such other policies as may be acceptable to the Investors in substitution
for them and will not take or omit to take any action or permit any action to be taken which might invalidate any such policy:

(@)

(b)

full and proper directors’ and officers’ liability insurance on terms reasonably acceptable to the Investors in respect of such persons
(including any Investor Director) as the Investors may require and which shall provide for a minimum cover of a € threshold to be agreed
between the Investors; and

full and proper insurance against such business risks and liabilities as the Investors may require (including key man insurance policies in
respect of specific managers) with an insurance company approved by Investor consent on such terms and in such amounts as shall
accord with good commercial practice (or as may otherwise be required from time to time by an Investor) and each Amber JVCo Group
company shall procure that such insurances are reviewed by a reputable insurance broker at least once in each calendar year and that all
reasonable recommendations of such broker are complied with.

Maintain all licences, consents and authorisations whatsoever which are required or necessary to carry on the business of each Amber JVCo
Group company from time to time.

Comply with the requirements of any relevant regulator from time to time.

Hold meetings of the board of directors in compliance with the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement.
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Procure that each of the other Amber JVCo Group companies shall pay to it (or, as the case may be, its immediate holding company) by way of
dividend or management charge such sum as such Amber JVCo Group company may lawfully pay and as shall be required to permit the payment
by the relevant Amber JVCo Group companies on the relevant date of any dividends payable on shares and of any amount payable on the
redemption of any securities, subject to the Financing Documents and Investor consent.

Act in accordance with any Investor directions in connection with the enforcement of its rights under any of the transaction documents or the
Financing Documents.

Maintain appropriate policies and procedures to assess anti-corruption, anti—competition, anti-money laundering and sanctions risk and to ensure
compliance with these and any other compliance measures, and report to the Amber JVCo Board annually in relation to the Amber JVCo Group’s
compliance with these policies and procedures.

Take all steps required by an Investor (or its Affiliates) for the Amber JVCo Group, the Investors and/or their Affiliates to comply with their
obligations in relation to compliance measures, on a timely basis, including the payment or reimbursement of any costs for which the Investors
and/or their Affiliates become liable.

10.

Procure that, other than with specific Investor consent, transaction, arrangement or agreement between (i) any Amber JVCo Group company and
(i) the Investors or any of its Affiliates, shall be on an arms-length basis.
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THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN ENTERED INTO ON THE DATE STATED AT THE BEGINNING
OF IT.

duly authorised for and on behalf of

TDR Capital V L.P.
By: TDR Capital General Partner V L.P., its general partner

By: TDR Capital General Partner V Limited, its general partner

Title: ) re (e

[Signature Page — Joint Bid Agreement]



duly authorised for and on behalf of

ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund IIl, L.P.
By: 1ISQ Global Fund Il GP, LLC, its general partner

By: 1ISQ Holdings, LLC, its sole member

name: [N

Title: Manager

[Signature Page — Joint Bid Agreement]



duly authorised for and on behalf of

ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (UST), L.P.
By: 1ISQ Global Fund Il GP, LLC, its general partner

By: ISQ Holdings, LLC, its sole member

Name: [

Title: Manager

[Signature Page — Joint Bid Agreement]



duly authorised for and on behalf of

ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund 11l (USTE), L.P.
By: 1ISQ Global Fund Il GP, LLC, its general partner
By: 1ISQ Holdings, LLC, its sole member

name: [N

Title: Manager

[Signature Page — Joint Bid Agreement]



duly authorised for and on behalf of

ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (EU), L.P.

By: | Squared Capital Advisors (US) LLC, acting in its capacity as alternative investment fund
manager

—

Title: Managing Partner

[Signature Page — Joint Bid Agreement]
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Acuerdo de Oferta Conjunta

Con fecha de 13 de septiembre de 2023
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y
FONDOS ISQ
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El presente Acuerdo de Oferta Conjunta (el «Acuerdo») se celebra el 13 de septiembre de 2023
entre:

(1) la entidad cuyo nombre y direccién figuran en la Parte A del Anexo 1, controlada en ultima
instancia por TDR Capital General Partner V Limited, que actla en calidad de socio colectivo
de TDR Capital General Partner V L.P. (el «<Fondo TDR»); y

(2) las entidades cuyos nombres y direcciones figuran en la Parte B del Anexo 1 (en conjunto,
los «Fondos 1SQ» y, cada uno de ellos, un «<Fondo 1SQ»),

(en conjunto, las «Partes» y el Fondo TDR, por una parte, y, cada uno de los Fondos 1SQ,
por otra, una «Parte»).

CONSIDERANDO:

(A) Que las Partes tienen la intencién de explorar la potencial oferta publica de adquisicién
voluntaria (la «Oferta») para la adquisicion de la totalidad del capital social emitido de
Objetivo a cambio de una contraprestacion en efectivo de conformidad con el Real Decreto
1066/2007, de 27 de julio, sobre el régimen de las ofertas publicas de adquisicion de valores
(el «kReglamento de la Oferta Piblica de Adquisicién») y la futura gestion de Objetivo por
Amber JVCo Limited, sociedad participada y gestionada conjuntamente (directa o
indirectamente) por las Partes («Amber JVCo») tras la finalizacién de la Oferta (la
«Operaciony).

(B) Que se pretende que la Oferta se ejecute por parte de Amber EquityCo, S.L.U., sociedad
dependiente indirecta plenamente participada de Amber JVCo («EquityCo»).

(©) Que las Partes desean evaluar si ejecutar la Oferta. El presente Acuerdo establece los
términos y condiciones de un acuerdo entre las Partes en relaciéon con la realizacion de
dicha evaluacion y, en su caso, la ejecucion de la Oferta, cuyos términos y condiciones se
recogeran en la Documentacion de la Oferta, de conformidad con el Reglamento de la
Oferta Publica de Adquisicion.

Se acuerda lo siguiente:

1 Definiciones e interpretacion
1.1 Definiciones

En el presente Acuerdo, las siguientes palabras y expresiones tendran el significado que se
indica a continuacion:

Por «Actuar en Concierto» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en el articulo 5
del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicién.

Por «Asesores» se entenderd aquellos asesores que las Partes acuerden en cada
momento.

Por «Afiliada» se entendera, con respecto a una Parte, cualquier persona que
directamente, o indirectamente a través de uno o mas intermediarios, Controle o esté
Controlada por o esté bajo Control comun con esa Parte en cada momento e incluye
cualesquiera fondos y/o vehiculos gestionados y/o asesorados por esa Parte o sus Afiliadas
en el sentido de lo anterior, pero excluye: (a) cualquier cartera o sociedades participadas en
las que cualquiera de dichos fondos y/o vehiculos posea directa o indirectamente una
participacién o inversion; (b) dichos fondos o vehiculos que se dediquen principalmente a
la inversién en deuda y/o titulos de deuda; y (c) cualquier persong que no esté
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implicada, directa o indirectamente, en el negocio de capital riesgo de dicha persona y que
no haya recibido informacién con respecto a la Oferta.

Por «Acuerdo» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en los expositivos.
Por «<Amber JVCo» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en los expositivos.

Por «Grupo Amber JVCo» se entendera Amber JVCo junto con sus sociedades
dependientes en cada momento.

Por «BidCo» se entendera Amber BidCo, S.L.U.;

Por «Presupuesto» se entendera el presupuesto para los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta, los
Costes de ISQ y los Costes de TDR que las Partes acuerden en cada momento.

Por «CNMV» se entendera la Comision Nacional del Mercado de Valores espafiola.

Por «Ley de Sociedades de Capital» se entendera el Real Decreto Legislativo 1/2010, de
2 de julio, por el que se aprueba el texto refundido de la Ley de Sociedades de Capital.

Por «Ley de Sociedades del Reino Unido» se entendera la Ley de Sociedades de 2006
en su version modificada en cualquier momento anterior a la fecha del presente documento.

Por «Partes Conjuntas» se entendera, con respecto a una Parte, colectivamente,
cualesquiera personas que Actlien en Concierto con dicha Parte, si bien, tunicamente a los
efectos del presente Acuerdo, ninguna de las Partes o sus Afiliadas se consideraran Partes
en Concierto de la otra Parte o de sus Afiliadas.

Por «Informacion Confidencial» se entendera:

(a) toda la informacién (en cualquier forma) proporcionada por o en nombre de
cualquiera de las Partes, cualquiera de sus Afiliadas o cualquiera de sus respectivos
Representantes, ya sea antes, durante o después de la fecha del presente Acuerdo,
en relacién con la Oferta, incluidos cualesquiera analisis, informes o documentos
que contengan o reflejen, o se deriven de o se generen a partir de dicha informacion;

(b) cualquier informacion proporcionada por Objetivo o sus asesores profesionales en
cualquier momento después de cualquier aproximacion de una Parte al consejo de
administracién de Obijetivo en relacién con la Oferta;

(c) el presente Acuerdo y cualesquiera otros documentos de la operacion en relacion
con la Oferta; y

(d) la existencia, el estado o el progreso de cualquier negociacién o conversacion en
relacién con la Oferta.

Por «Control» se entendera, con respecto a una persona: (a) la propiedad de mas del 50
por ciento de los titulos con derecho a voto de dicha persona; (b) el derecho a nombrar, o
hacer que se nombre, 2 mas del 50 por ciento de los miembros del consejo de
administracion (u érgano de gobierno similar) de dicha persona; o (c) el derecho a gestionar,
o dirigir la gestion, de forma discrecional, de los negocios, asuntos y/o activos de dicha
persona, y se considerara que un socio comanditario de una sociedad comanditaria
Controla dicha sociedad comanditaria y que un gestor de inversiones permanente de un
fondo Controla dicho fondo (y los terminos «Controlador» y «Controlado» tendran
significados correlativos a los anteriores).
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Por «Codigo Penal espanol» se entendera la Ley Organica 10/1995, de 23 de noviembre,
del Cadigo Penal.

Por «Parte Incumplidora» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.4.
Por «CCC» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.1.

Por «Fecha de Entrada en Vigor» se entendera la fecha en la que se ejecuta la Oferta de
conformidad con el articulo 37 del Reglamento de la Oferta Pablica de Adquisicion.

Por «Cartas de Compromiso» se entendera todas y cada una de las cartas de compromiso
proporcionadas por cualquier Asesor en relacion con la Operacién en beneficio, directo o
indirecto, de las Partes (pero excluida cualquier carta de compromiso en beneficio exclusivo
de una sola Parte).

Por «Compromiso de Capital» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la
Clausula 2.7.

Por «EquityCo» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en los expositivos.

Por «Consejo de Administracion de EquityCo» se entendera el consejo de administracion
de EquityCo en cada momento.

Por «ERISA» se entendera la Ley de Seguridad de los Ingresos de Jubilacién de los
Empleados de Estados Unidos de 1974, en su versidon modificada.

Por «Fecha de Presentacién» se entenderd, lo que ocurra antes: (a) la fecha de registro
en la CNMV de la primera versién del Folleto de la Oferta; y (b) en su caso, el anuncio inicial
de la Oferta de conformidad con el articulo 16 del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de
Adquisicion.

Por «Financiaciéon» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 2.3.8.
Por «FinCo» se entendera Amber FinCo PLC;

Por «Fondos» se entendera el Fondo TDR o los Fondos ISQ (segln proceda).

Por «Acuerdo de Indemnizacion» se entendera todos y cada uno de los acuerdos en los
que cualquiera de las Partes o sus Afiliadas (excluidos los miembros del Grupo Amber
JVCo) acuerden indemnizaciones u otfras obligaciones en relacién con la Operacion
respecto, directa o indirectamente, de las Partes (pero excluido cualquier acuerdo celebrado
en beneficio exclusivo de una sola Parte);

Por «Compromisos Iniciales» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.1.
Por «Inversores Iniciales» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.1.
Por «Inversiones Iniciales» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.1.
Por «Fecha de la Inversion» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.1.
Por «Inversores» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.1.

Por «ISQ» se entendera 1SQ Global Fund Ill GP, LLC, una sociedad de responsabilidad limitada
de Delaware con domicilio social sito en 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, DE 19808.

Por «Costes de ISQ» se entendera todos los costes, honorarios y gastos incurridos en
relacion con el asesoramiento especifico Unicamente para ISQ y sus Afiliadas.
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Por «JVCo» se entendera Amber JVCo, EquityCo y cualesquiera ofras entidades constituidas
por las Partes en relacién con la Oferta, cuya sociedad dominante sera Amber JVCo.

Por «Costes de la Oferta Conjunta» se entendera, sin perjuicio de la Clausula 10.6, los costes,
honorarios y gastos incurridos por (o en nombre de) cualquier JVCo o por cualquiera de las
Partes en beneficio de ambas Partes, incluidos los Costes de TDR y los Costes de I1SQ.

Por «Linklaters» se entendera Linklaters LLP y Linklaters, S.L.P.

Por «Pérdidas» se entendera cualesquiera pérdidas, reclamaciones, dafios o pasivos (y
cualesquiera honorarios profesionales y gastos corrientes razonables y documentados en
relacion con las mismas).

Por «Parte No Incumplidora» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 4.4.
Por «Oferta» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en los expositivos.
Por «Comité de la Oferta» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 2.9.

Por «Miembros del Comité de la Oferta» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en
la Clausula 2.9.

Por «Documentacion de la Oferta» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la
Clausula 2.3.6.

Por «Periodo de la Oferta» se entendera el periodo comprendido entre la Fecha de
Presentacion y la primera de las siguientes fechas: (i) la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor o (ii) la
fecha en la que (a) las Partes acuerden, con sujecion al Reglamento de la Oferta Publica
de Adquisicion, la retirada de la Oferta o (b) las condiciones de la Oferta no se cumplan o
no se renuncie a ellas a tiempo, dejando sin efecto la Oferta.

Por «Folleto de la Oferta» se entendera el folleto que establece los términos y condiciones
de la Oferta.

Por «Sindicado Solapado» se entendera cualquier sindicado potencial designado como
Sindicado Solapado por Kirkland & Ellis International LLP en cada momento en virtud de
que dicho sindicado potencial sea un socio comanditario o inversor existente tanto en el
Fondo TDR como en un Fondo ISQ.

Por «Partes» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en los expositivos.

Por «Beneficiario» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 8.

Por «Pagador» se entenderd el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 8.

Por «Sindicado Permitido» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 6.3.
Por «Sindicacion Permitida» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 6.3.

Por «Sindicado Potencial» se entendera (i) cualquier Sindicado Solapado que sea
acordado por las Partes como Sindicado Potencial de una Parte y (i) cualquier persona que
no sea un Sindicado Solapado o Sindicado Restringido.

Por «Fecha Relevante» se entendera, con respecto a cualquiera de las Partes, la fecha
gue sea seis meses posterior a la primera de las siguientes fechas: (i) la fecha en la que
dicha Parte se retire de la Oferta de conformidad con la Clausula 9.1 infra; y (ii) la fecha en
la que el presente Acuerdo finalice o se resuelva de conformidad con la Clausula 9.3.
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Por «Proporcion Relevante» se entendera, con respecto a una Parte, la proporcién que el
Compromiso Inicial del Inversor o Inversores Iniciales de dicha Parte representa con
respecto a la suma de todos los Compromisos Iniciales del 50% cada uno.

Por «Parte Restante» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la Clausula 9.2.2.

Por «Informes y Cartas de Confianza» se entendera todos y cada uno de los informes de
due diligence (y la carta o cartas de confianza asociadas) en relacion con los mismos
proporcionados por cualquier Asesor en relacion con la Operacion en beneficio de las Partes
(pero excluido cualquier informe de due diligence en beneficio exclusivo de una sola Parte).

Por «Representantes» se entendera, con respecto a cualquier persona, sus socios,
directivos, asesores profesionales empleados, prestamistas, prestamistas propuestos,
auditores y otros representantes de dicha persona.

Por «Sindicado Restringido» se entendera:

(a) cualquier persona que (como resultado de tal sindicacion): (i) provoque que el Grupo
Amber JVCo quede sujeto a cualguier régimen regulatorio que imponga
restricciones u obligaciones adversas al Grupo Amber JVCo; (ii) deba registrarse,
obtener una licencia, aprobarse o autorizarse por cualquier regulador; (iii) deba (o
requiera a EquityCo o a cualquiera de las Partes) realizar una declaracion
antimonopolio, de inversian extranjera o regulatoria no contemplada en el Folleto de
la Oferta presentado ante la CNMV; (iv) sea razonablemente probable que cause un
retraso sustancial o ponga en peligro la recepcion de cualquier aprobacion o
autorizacién que sea necesaria para adquirir u operar el Grupo Amber JVCo o llevar
a cabo cualquier operacién o acuerdo aprobado por el Consejo de Administracién
de EquityCo o el Consejo de Administracion de cualquier ofra JVCo; o (v) sea
razonablemente probable de otro modo que tenga cualquier otro efecto sustancial
adverso sobre la posicion regulatoria o legal del Grupo Amber JVCo;

(b) cualquier persona sujeta a un procedimiento de insolvencia o a acontecimientos
similares;

(c) cualquier persona que no sea (antes de dicha sindicacién) un socio comanditario o
inversor existente en (i) el Fondo TDR o cualquiera de los Fondos 1SQ o (ii) cualquier
fondo y/o vehiculo bajo gestion o control comin con el Fondo TDR o cualquiera de
los Fondos ISQ; o

(d) cualquier persona que sea accionista actual de Objetivo.

Por «Ley del Mercado de Valores espafnola» se entendera la Ley 6/2023, de 17 de marzo,
de los Mercados de Valores y de los Servicios de Inversion.

Por «Pacto de Accionistas» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en la
Clausula 2.3.6(i).

Por «Documento de Estructura» se entendera el documento sobre la estructura relativo a
la Operacién preparado por Linklaters con fecha de 17 de agosto de 2023;

Por «sindicacion» se entendera cualquier sindicacion, transferencia o cesién (y
«sindicar», «transferir» y «ceder» y las palabras y expresiones relacionadas tendran
significados correlativos a los anteriores).

Por «Sociedad Dependiente» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye a dicho término
en la Ley de Sociedades del Reino Unido.
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Por «Participaciones en la Sindicacion» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en
la Clausula 6.3.

Por «Objetivo» se entendera Amber Services, S.A.
Por «Grupo Objetivo» se entendera Objetivo y sus sociedades dependientes.

Por «Titulos de Participacion de Objetivo» se entendera valores de renta variable y de
deuda emitidos por el Grupo Objetivo (incluidos, entre otros, warrants u otros instrumentos
financieros que conlleven la opcion de adquirir o suscribir acciones).

Por «TDR» se entendera TDR Capital General Partner V Limited, una sociedad limitada
constituida en Escocia con nimero de registro SC707592, con domicilio social sito en 50
Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edimburgo, Escocia, EH3 9WJ, y cualquier referenciaa TDR
en el presente documento se entenderd a TDR actuando en su calidad de socio
comanditario del Fondo TDR.

Por «Costes de TDR» se entendera todos los costes, honorarios y gastos incurridos en
relacidon con el asesoramiento especifico Gnicamente para TDR y sus Afiliadas.

Por «Reglamento de la Oferta Pablica de Adquisicion» se entendera el significado que
se le atribuye en los expositivos.

Por «Pliego de Condiciones» se entendera el pliego de condiciones acordado entre las
Partes que establece los términos principales en los que las Partes proponen invertir en
Amber JVCo en relacién con la Operacion, una copia de la cual figura en el Anexo 2 de este
Acuerdo.

Por «Operacién» se entendera el significado que se le atribuye en los expositivos.

1.2 Interpretacién
121  Los titulos de las clausulas no afectaran a la interpretacién del presente Acuerdo.
1.2.2  Salvo que el contexto requiera lo contrario, las palabras en singular incluiran el plural

y viceversa.

1.2.3 Toda referencia a una ley o disposicion legal se entendera a la misma en su forma
enmendada, ampliada o promulgada de nuevo en cada momento, e incluird toda la
legislaciéon subordinada promulgada en cada momento en virtud de tal ley o
disposicion legal.

124 Las referencias a Clausulas son a las clausulas del presente Acuerdo y las
referencias a articulos son al articulo correspondiente del Reglamento de la Oferta
Publica de Adquisicion.

1.25 Las palabras «incluido», «incluyen», «en particular» y palabras de efecto similar no
se consideraran limitativas del efecto general de las palabras que las preceden.

2 Desarrollo de la Oferta

21 Las Partes acordaran y aplicaran una estrategia para realizar la Oferta.

2.2 Las Partes, antes de la Fecha de Presentacion, constituiran las JVCo que sean necesarias
antes de la Fecha de Presentacién a efectos de la Oferta propuesta y, seglin sea necesario,
acordaran de buena fe cualquier otro asunto en relacién con las JVCo, incluida su estructura
de propiedad, para obtener una estructura mutuamente aceptable y beneficiosa para la
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Oferta y para el mantenimiento de cualesquiera acciones de Objetivo adquiridas por
EquityCo de conformidad con la Oferta, en cada caso segun lo contemplado en el
Documento de Estructura. Todas las JVCo son y seguiran siendo hasta la Fecha de Entrada
en Vigor, salvo que las Partes acuerden otra cosa por escrito, propiedad (directa o indirecta)
de las Partes en las Proporciones Relevantes.

23 Sin perjuicio de lo dispuesto en la Clausula 8, las Partes acuerdan colaborar de buena fe
para alcanzar un acuerdo unanime sobre:

231

23.2

233

234

23.5

2.3.6

el precio y otras condiciones de la oferta, incluida la forma de anuncio y ejecucion
de la Oferta (y cualquier estrategia de establecimiento de precios o revisiones
relativas a la misma);

la forma y el momento de todas las conversaciones con Objetivo, su direccion y
cualquiera de sus accionistas u otras partes interesadas;

el desarrollo general de la Oferta;

la estructura de la Oferta, incluida la finalizacion del Documento de Estructura
(reconociéndose que una Parte emprendera todas las medidas razonables para
adaptarse a los requisitos de estructuracion de la otra Parte con respecto a ERISA);

la constitucion de cualquier JVCo y los acuerdos de gobierno corporativo de dichas
entidades, incluida la composicién del consejo de administracion de cualquiera de
ellas, en particular designando a una 0 mas personas de cada Parte para facilitar y
asumir la responsabilidad en virtud del Reglamento de la Oferta Pulblica de
Adquisicién (junto con otras personas que puedan asumir la responsabilidad en
virtud del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicion) para cada Parte, tal y
como pueda reflgjarse en el Folleto de la Oferta;

la documentacion definitiva necesaria para ejecutar la Oferta (la «Documentacion
de la Oferta»), que incluye:

(i) un pacto de accionistas relativo a Amber JVCo (el «Pacto de Accionistas»)
y estatutos u otros documentos constitutivos de las JVCo, cuyos términos
seran coherentes con el Pliego de Condiciones;

(ii) la documentacion publica necesaria o conveniente en relacién con cualquier
anuncio relativo a la Oferta y a la ejecucion de la Oferta, incluido el Folleto
de la Oferta;

(iii) la forma de los compromisos irrevocables que puedan contraerse en
relacion con la Oferta;

(iv) la CCC y los demas documentos necesarios para la financiacion de
determinados fondos;

(v) los documentos necesarios para la Financiacién (tal y como se definen a
continuacion);

(vi) las condiciones de nombramiento de cualquier asesor segin lo establecido
en una Carta de Compromiso entre el asesor pertinente y cualquier JVCo
y/o cualquiera de las Partes; y

(vii)  cualesquiera otros acuerdos que se determinen necesarios o convenientes
en relacion con el anuncio y la ejecucionde la-Ofera:
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2.3.7 la estrategia y la financiacién de cualguier adquisicion en el mercado de Titulos de
Participacion de Objetivo;

23.8 lafinanciacion de la deuda de la Oferta (la «Financiacion»), incluida la seleccién y
el nombramiento de los bancos financiadores, los organizadores y otros asesores
(distintos de los bancos financiadores que figuran en el Anexo 2);

2.3.9 la estrategia de sindicacion de la Financiacion;

2.3.10 el nombramiento (distinto de los asesores que figuran en el Anexo 2) o la instruccion
de cualquier asesor a 0 en nombre de cualquier JVCo (pero, para evitar toda duda,
esto no se aplicara a ningin nombramiento o instruccion a asesores que actien en
nombre de cualquier Parte cuando el trabajo realizado en virtud de dicho
nombramiento o instruccion no dé lugar a incurrir en Costes de la Oferta Conjunta);

2.3.11 el alcance de la due diligence de confirmacién sobre Objetivo;
2.312 cualquier decision relativa a la gestion de Objetivo;

2.3.13 cualquier decision relativa a la solicitud de anulacién de la admision a cotizacion de
Objetivo;

2.3.14 la renuncia real o pretendida, la consideracion como satisfecha, la invocacion o la
madificacién de cualquier condicion o de cualquier condicion previa a la Oferta, la
ampliacién de cualquier plazo de aceptacion de la Oferta o similar y/o la revisién de
los términos de la Oferta, o el vencimiento o la retirada de la Oferta;

2.3.15 la estrategia para retirar la cotizacion de Objetivo;

2.3.16 cualquier decision relativa a cualquier recurso o desinversion que pudiera exigirse
por parte de una autoridad reguladora o gubernamental en relacién con la Oferta
relativa a Objetivo, incluidos todos los asuntos relativos a las negociaciones y
términos y condiciones de cualquiera de dichos recursos o desinversiones. Para
evitar toda duda, cuando dicha decisién afecte Unicamente al/a los activo/s de
cualquiera de las Partes (y no a Objetivo), la decision se tomara a la entera
discrecion de dicha Parte (y si tal decisién afecta a un activo en el que ambas Partes
hayan invertido, la decisién se tomara tnicamente con el consentimiento de ambas
Partes);

2.3.17 cualquier decision de renunciar a cualquier condicién reglamentaria con respecto a
la Operacion o cualquier decisién de proceder a la ejecucion de la Operacion a pesar
de que no se haya cumplido dicha condicién reglamentaria; y

2.3.18 siempre con sujecion a los requisitos del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de
Adquisicion u otra ley o reglamento aplicable al que las Partes estén directa o
indirectamente sujetas y a la Clausula 2.7, el momento de la publicacién de Ia
documentacién publica contemplada en la Clausula 2.3.6(ii) o cualquier otro anuncio
en relacion con la Oferta.

24 Para evitar toda duda, las Partes no presentaran el Folleto de la Oferta ante la CNMV ni
realizaran ningun otro anuncio de la Oferta hasta que hayan alcanzado un acuerdo unanime
sobre cada una de las cuestiones establecidas en la Clausula 2.3 supra en la medida en
gue sea necesario adoptar dichas decisiones antes de la Fecha de Presentacion.
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2.5 Ninguna de las Partes debera, y cada Parte debera procurar que ninguna de sus Partes en
Concierto (incluida, en la medida en que esté dentro de sus competencias, cualquier JVCo)
haga nada de lo siguiente:

2,51 presentar el Folleto de Oferta ante la CNMV hasta que las Partes hayan acordado
por escrito el momento, la forma y el contenido de dicha presentacion;

2,5.2 sin perjuicio de lo dispuesto en la Clausula 2.6 infra, realizar cualquier anuncio
plblico o comunicacion externa en relacion con la Oferta, ya sea formal o informal,
hasta gue las Partes hayan consentido por escrito el momento, la forma y el
contenido de dicho anuncio o comunicacién (sin que dicho consentimiento pueda
denegarse o retrasarse de forma injustificada); o

25.3 salvo en la medida en que lo exija la ley, o cualquier bolsa de valores u organismo
regulador o gubernamental al que esté sujeta la Parte o cualquier Afiliada (incluida
la CNMV), entablar vinculos, negociar 0 comunicarse de cualquier ofro modo con
Objetivo o0 sus accionistas o asesores, cualquier autoridad reguladora o bolsa de
valores u organismo gubernamental, incluidas cualesquiera agencias de calificacion
o la CNMV con respecto a la Oferta,

en todos los casos sin el consentimiento previo de la otra Parte. Sin perjuicio de lo anterior,
Linklaters tendra derecho a comunicarse con la CNMV en nombre de EquityCo y de las
Partes (conjuntamente como oferentes conjuntos) en la medida en que lo considere
razonablemente necesario en relacidn con sus responsabilidades relevantes en relacién
con la Oferta. Asimismo, cada una de las Partes podra comunicarse con la CNMV en
relacion con su propia posicion en virtud del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicion,
siempre que notifique inmediatamente por escrito a Linklaters si cualquiera de dichas
comunicaciones con la CNMV tiene lugar en relacién con la Operacién.

2.6 En la medida en que la CNMV o el Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicién exijan
la realizacién de cualquier anuncio publico o comunicacion externa en relacion con la Oferta
con caracter urgente, las Partes haran todo lo posible por abordar los términos y contenidos
de dicho anuncio publico o comunicacién externa y pondran rdpidamente a su disposicién
a los representantes pertinentes con poca antelacion a tal efecto pero, sin perjuicio de lo
anterior, dicho anuncio o comunicacién externa podra realizarse sin el consentimiento previo
de la otra Parte.

2.7 Sin perjuicio de las obligaciones de la Parte que se retira que de otro modo subsistan en
virtud del presente Acuerdo, si una Parte se ha retirado de la Oferta de conformidad con la
Clausula 9.1, no tendra mas obligaciones en virtud de las Clausulas 2.1a226y 2.8 a2.11
(inclusive), y su consentimiento no sera necesario a los efectos de tales Clausulas y de las
Clausulas 9.2.2, 12.4 y 13.1. Ademas, si (y mientras dure el periodo durante el cual) una
Parte incumple sustancialmente el presente Acuerdo o cualquier Documentacién de la
Oferta (incluso con respecto a la Suscripcién de su/s Inversor/es Inicial/es en virtud de la
CCC [tal y como se define en el mismo] [un «Compromiso de Capital»]), el consentimiento
de dicha Parte no sera necesario a los efectos de las Clausulas 2.1 a 26y 2.8 a 2.11
(inclusive), 9.2.2, 12.4 y 13.1, y cualquier administrador de la Parte incumplidora nombrado
para el Consejo de EquityCo o el consejo de cualquier otra JVCo no tendra derecho a asistir
a ninguna reunion de tal consejo ni a votar sobre ninguna resolucién del mismo.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

Cada Parte se compromete a compartir con la otra cualquier informacion relevante de la
que disponga en relacion con Objetivo o la Oferta (incluida la proporcionada por cualquier
Asesor en relacion con la Oferta [distinto de los Asesores designados Unicamente para
asesorar a una de las Partes]) en cada momento, incluida la informacién que sea
razonablemente necesaria:

(i) para su divulgacion publica, tal y como exige el Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de
Adquisicion;
(i) en relacion con cualquier presentacion reglamentaria exigida en cualquier territorio;

(i) en relacion con cualquier proceso relativo a los Avales (tal como se definen en la
CCC); 0

(iv) en relacion con la Financiacién, pero excluida, con respecto a cualquiera de las
Partes, cualquier informacién sustancial que:

(a) se refiera Unicamente a esa Parte o que esa Parte no esté autorizada (en
virtud de la legislacién o normativa aplicable o de cualquier acuerdo con
terceros) a compartir con la otra Parte; o

(b) no esté permitida por (o entre en conflicto con) la Clausula 12. Toda
informacion comercialmente sensible (incluida la Informacion Confidencial)
relativa a cualquiera de las Partes que sea necesaria para cualquier
presentacioén y/o aprobacion reglamentaria, se facilitara de abogado a
abogado.

Las Partes acuerdan que se constituird un comité de oferta (el «Comité de la Oferta»)
inmediatamente después de la ejecucion del presente Acuerdo. El Comité de la Oferta
estaréd compuesto por un representante designado por cada una de las Partes (los
«Miembros del Comité de la Oferta») que, a menos que se notifique por escrito (incluso
por correo electrénico) un nombramiento alternativo, seran:

29.1 Linda Zhang como representante de TDR; y

2.9.2 Alexander Metelkin como representante de I1SQ.

Todas las decisiones del Comité de la Oferta requieren la aprobaciéon unanime de los
Miembros del Comité de la Oferta, salvo lo expresamente previsto en las Clausulas 2.7 (en
caso de incumplimiento) y 6.4.3.

Cada una de las Partes acuerda que todos los consentimientos, aprobaciones,
autorizaciones o acuerdos que deban otorgarse por ella en virtud de los términos de este
Acuerdo (incluidos los asuntos a los que se refieren las Clausulas 2.3, 2.4, 9.2.2, 124 y
13.1) o de cualquier otro modo en relacion con la Oferta seran remitidos al Comité de la
Oferta y se consideraran otorgados por una Parte si se aprueban por escrito por parte de
su Miembro del Comité de la Oferta.

Presentaciones reglamentarias

Las Partes confirman que continuaran perfeccionando su analisis en lo que respecta a
cualquier informacion o interaccion antimonopolio o de otro tipo que pueda ser obligatoria o
conveniente para la Oferta y colaboraran en la obtencion de la informaciéon necesaria o
apropiada de Obijetivo.
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3.2

4.2

4.3

Las Partes colaboraran de buena fe con la intencién de obtener claridad entre ellas sobre
cualquier presentacion obligatoria o conveniente y, a su debido tiempo, sobre el proceso
para realizar dichas presentaciones.

Financiacion de la oferta

Con sujecién al Pacto de Accionistas, en la fecha en la que el resultado de la Oferta se
publique en la pagina web de la CNMV (o en cualquier otra fecha que las Partes acuerden
mutuamente por escrito) (la «<Fecha de la Inversion»), el Fondo TDR y los Fondos 1SQ (los
«Inversores Iniciales» y, junto con cualquier Sindicado Permitido al que se haya sindicado
cualguier compromiso de financiar cualquier parte de cualquier Compromiso de Capital en
virtud de la CCC [segun se define mas adelante] como parte de cualquier Sindicacion
Permitida antes de la Fecha de la Inversion de conformidad con la Clausula 6.3, los
«Inversores»), respectivamente, destinaran (directa o indirectamente) a EquityCo la
cantidad de financiacion en efectivo que se establece en la CCC, compromisos que se
realizaréan en los porcentajes que se establecen a continuacién (los «Compromisos
Iniciales»):

41.1 el Fondo TDR: 50 por ciento; y
41.2 los Fondos ISQ: 50 por ciento,

y, con sujecion a los términos del presente Acuerdo, aportaran una parte o la totalidad de
dicha financiacion en efectivo (las «Inversiones Iniciales») para suscribir (directa o
indirectamente) titulos o instrumentos de EquityCo (siempre que el Inversor o Inversores
Iniciales de cada Parte posean el 50% de los derechos de voto) pari passu en todos los
aspectos, y dichas Inversiones Iniciales se realizaran en titulos o instrumentos del mismo
tipo y clase, al mismo precio y en las mismas proporciones entre cada uno de dichos tipos
y clases. En relacién con los Compromisos Iniciales, los Inversores Iniciales proporcionaran
y seran parte de una carta de compromiso de capital con EquityCo y las CCP (segun se
definen en la CCC) (la «CCC»).

Las Partes cooperaran de buena fe para garantizar que EquityCo disponga de la
Financiacion en relacion con la Oferta necesaria para cumplir con sus obligaciones en virtud
del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicién y que se disponga de toda la
financiacion en efectivo necesaria para satisfacer las necesidades de EquityCo en relacion
con la Oferta.

Si uno 0 mas de los Inversores Iniciales (directa o indirectamente) aportan financiacion en
efectivo a las JVCo de conformidad con la Clausula 4.1 y de acuerdo con la CCC y dicha
financiacién en efectivo no se utiliza en su totalidad o la CCC se resuelve posteriormente
como resultado de la expiracion del plazo de la misma, las Partes procuraran (a titulo
meramente ilustrativo, pero ejerciendo los derechos que tengan en la JVCo
correspondiente, y/o dando instrucciones a cualquier administrador nombrado en el Consejo
de Administracion de la JVCo pertinente por esa Parte para que vote a favor de cualquier
resolucion pertinente) que la JVCo pertinente devuelva sin demora dicha financiacion en
efectivo (o el excedente de la financiacién en efectivo) a los Inversores Iniciales en las
cantidades y proporciones aportadas por o en nombre de cada Inversor Inicial de
conformidad con los términos de la CCC.
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4.4 Si cualquiera de las Partes incumple sus obligaciones en virtud de la CCC (la «Parte
Incumplidora») sin perjuicio de cualesquiera otros recursos que la otra Parte (seguln
proceda) (la «Parte No Incumplidora») pueda tener con respecto a dicho incumplimiento:
441 laParte No Incumplidora podra resolver inmediatamente el presente Acuerdo previa
notificacion por escrito a la Parte Incumplidora;

44.2 la Parte No Incumplidora podra ejercer los derechos de EquityCo en virtud de la
CCC, en nombre de EquityCo;

4.4.3 la Parte Incumplidora, a eleccién por escrito de la Parte No Incumplidora, transferira
inmediatamente, y procurara que sus Afiliadas transfieran inmediatamente, a la
Parte No Incumplidora, o como esta lo disponga, cualesquiera acciones u otros
titulos directa o indirectamente mantenidos en EquityCo y/o cualquiera de las JVCo
en poder de la Parte Incumplidora o de dicha Afiliada (siempre que, sin embargo, si
la Parte Incumplidora transfiere acciones u oftros titulos directa o indirectamente
mantenidos en EquityCo y/o cualguiera de las JVCo a la Parte No Incumplidora en
virtud de esta disposicion, la Parte No Incumplidora reembolsara a la Parte
Incumplidora cualquier cantidad previamente financiada por la Parte Incumplidora,
con sujecion a un derecho razonable de compensacion para cubrir las Pérdidas
razonablemente relacionadas con el incumplimiento); y

44.4 la Parte Incumplidora indemnizara a la Parte No Incumplidora por cualesquiera
Pérdidas en que incurra o sufra como consecuencia del incumplimiento por parte de
la Parte Incumplidora de sus obligaciones en virtud de la CCC, incluidas las Pérdidas
derivadas de cualquier incumplimiento por parte de EquityCo de ejecutar la Oferta
derivado directa o indirectamente del incumplimiento por la Parte Incumplidora de
financiar su Compromiso de Capital.

5 Cese de negociaciéon

51 Cada una de las Partes confirma que, tras haber realizado averiguaciones razonables, ni
ella ni ninguna de sus Partes en Concierto se consideran titulares de Titulos de Participacién
en el Objetivo ni han adquirido ninguno de estos en los 12 meses anteriores a la fecha del
presente Acuerdo. Para evitar toda duda, la anterior manifestacion y garantia se limita al
conocimiento real de cada Parte de los Titulos de Participacion en el Objetivo de sus Partes
en Concierto en la fecha del presente Acuerdo.

5.2 Excepto en virtud de la Oferta, desde la fecha del presente Acuerdo hasta la Fecha
Relevante, ninguna de las Partes debers, y cada una de las Partes procurara que ninguna
de sus Partes en Concierto (a partir de la fecha mencionada en la Clausula 5.5) ni (en la
medida en que este dentro de sus facultades) ninguna JVCo haga nada de lo siguiente:
5.21  por si misma o actuando en concierto con otros, adquirir ni ofrecer adquirir, o hacer que

otra persona adquiera u ofrezca adquirir, Titulos de Participacién en el Objetivo; o
5.2.2 celebrar un acuerdo o convenio (ya sea condicional o de otro tipo) para llevar a cabo
cualquiera de los asuntos dispuestos en la Clausula 5.2.1.

5.3 Salvo en el caso de transferencias a JVCo en relacién con la Oferta, ninguna de las Partes
deberd, y cada Parte procurara que ninguna de sus Partes en Concierto ni (en la medida
en que esté dentro de sus facultades) ninguna JVCo, desde la fecha del presente Acuerdo
hasta la primera de las siguientes fechas, haga nada de lo siguiente: (i) la fecha en la que
dicha Parte se retire de la Oferta de conformidad con la F_I_agsula 9.1; y (ii) la Fecha de
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Entrada en Vigor, en la que venda, transfiera o enajene de cualquier otro modo cualesquiera
Titulos de Participacion en el Objetivo o celebre un acuerdo o convenio (ya sea condicional
o de otro tipo) para ello.

54 Si las Partes anuncian que no siguen adelante con la Oferta:

541 cada una de las Partes (incluida, una vez constituida, cualquier JVCo) cumplira los
terminos de cualquier anuncio realizado en virtud del Reglamento de la Oferta
Publica de Adquisicion;

54.2 |as Partes cooperaran para satisfacer los requisitos que la CNMV pueda imponer y

54.3 ninguna de las Partes (y cada una de las Partes procurara que ninguna de sus Partes
en Concierto [incluida, en la medida de sus posibilidades, cualquier JVCo]), par si misma
o actuando de forma concertada con otros, adquirira ni ofrecera adquirir cualquier Titulo
de Participacién en el Objetivo ni celebrara un acuerdo o convenio como resultado del
cual esta o cualquier persona pueda adquirir cualquier Titulo de Participacion en el
Objetivo, en cada caso Unicamente en la medida en que: (i) se considere que las Partes
Actlian en Concierto; o (ii) dicha accién dé lugar a que la otra Parte o EquityCo se vean
obligadas a realizar una oferta obligatoria por el Objetivo.

55 Cada una de las Partes acuerda que emprendera todas las medidas a su alcance para
enviar (o procurar que se envien) notificaciones de cese de negociacion a sus Partes en
Concierto tan pronto como sea posible tras la Fecha de Presentacion (en la medida en que
no se haya enviado a ninguna Parte en Concierto una notificacion de cese de negociacién
antes de esa fecha).

6 Exclusividad y Sindicacion

6.1 Cada una de las Partes garantiza a la otra que, en la fecha del presente Acuerdo, no es
oferente, adquirente, prestamista de ninguna de dichas personas, ni parte interesada en
ninguna otra oferta o propuesta en relaciéon con la posible adquisicidén de la totalidad o parte
de los activos o del capital social de Objetivo, y que no forma parte de ninguna otra forma
de asociacion, empresa conjunta, consorcio o acuerdo similar, ni ha acordado formal o
informalmente formar parte de los mismos, con/de cualquier otra parte o partes que hagan
o contemplen hacer una oferta por algunos o todos los activos o el capital social de Objetivo.

6.2 Cada Parte se compromete con la otra, a partir de la fecha del presente Acuerdo:

6.21 hasta la anterior de las siguientes:

(i) la fecha en la que dicha Parte se retire de la Oferta de conformidad con la
Clausula 9.1; y

(i) la fecha en que el presente Acuerdo finalice o se resuelva de conformidad
con la Clausula 9.3,

colaborar con la otra Parte de forma exclusiva para promover la Oferta; y

6.2.2 hasta la Fecha Relevante de dicha Parte, a no participar, y a procurar que ninguna
de sus Afiliadas ni sus Representantes (excluido cualquier prestamista, prestamista
propuesto, asesor profesional, auditor u otro representante que no esté bajo el
control de dicha Parte) o cualquiera de sus Fondos, excepto como parte de la Oferta,
participen directa o indirectamente como inversores de capital 0 como proveedores
de cualquier otra forma de financiaciéon o desemperien cualguier ofra funcién o
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servicio sustantivo (o entablen conversaciones o acuerden formal o informalmente
hacerlo) con respecto a cualquier adquisicion de Objetivo o cualquier otra operacién
en relaciéon con Objetivo que tenga un efecto similar,

en cada caso, salvo con el consentimiento previo por escrito de la otra Parte.

6.3 Sin perjuicio de cualesquiera derechos de transferencia acordados en el Pacto de Accionistas,
cada Parte tendra derecho, desde la fecha del presente Acuerdo hasta la fecha de terminacién
del mismo, a sindicar (o acordar sindicar) cualquiera de los compromisos de sus Inversores
Iniciales para financiar su Compromiso de Capital en virtud de la CCC y/o cualquier participacion
indirecta mantenida por cualquier Inversor o Afiliada de cualquier Inversor en titulos de Amber
JVCo, (segln proceda, las «Participaciones en la Sindicacién») a un Sindicado Potencial, en
cada caso, sin el consentimiento de la otra Parte (una «Sindicacion Permitida», y dicho
sindicado, un «Sindicado Permitido»), siempre que:

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

no se permita la sindicacion (o acuerdo de sindicacion) de ninguna participacion
indirecta en titulos de Amber JVCo a ningln Sindicado Restringido;

dicha Parte o Afiliada de dicha Parte retenga todos los derechos de voto y otros
derechos de control (incluidos todos los derechos ejercitables por dicha Parte [o en
su nombre] en el consejo de administracién de Amber JVCo o cualquier otro consejo
que pueda controlar el Grupo Amber JVCo en cada momento, o como accionista
indirecto de Amber JVCo) en relacion con dichas Participaciones en la Sindicacion,
y estas Ultimas se mantengan por parte del Sindicado Permitido indirectamente en
un fondo u otro vehiculo gestionado o controlado por una Afiliada de dicha Parte;

cualquier Sindicado Permitido al que cualquier Inversor Inicial sindique cualquier
parte del compromiso de dicho Inversor Inicial para financiar su Compromiso de
Capital en virtud de la CCC realizara cualquier aportacion de efectivo en virtud de
dicho compromiso en la Fecha de la Inversion a Amber JVCo indirectamente y en
ningln caso adquirira ninguna participacion directa en titulos de Amber JVCo;

el Fondo TDR y sus respectivas Afiliadas mantengan la titularidad econémica directa
de (y no se sindiquen en virtud de ninguna Sindicacién Permitida con respecto de)
al menos el 50,01% de su Inversion Inicial;

los Fondos 1SQ y sus respectivas Afiliadas mantengan la titularidad econémica
directa de (y no se sindiquen en virtud de ninguna Sindicacién Permitida con
respecto de) al menos el 50,01% de su Inversién Inicial;

la Parte en cuestion cumpla los términos de la Clausula 6.4 (y procure lo mismo con
respecto de cualquier Sindicado Potencial); y

cada Inversor Inicial pertinente siga siendo el principal responsable con respecto de
la totalidad de su Compromiso de Capital otorgado en virtud de la CCC en la Fecha
de Presentacion.

6.4 En relacion con cualquier Sindicacién Permitida:

6.4.1 cada Parte podra dirigirse a cualquier persona de conformidad con la Clausula 6.3,
siempre que dicha persona sea un Sindicado Potencial;
6.4.2 cada Parte tendrd derecho a dirigirse y abordar la Oferta con cualquiera de sus
respectivos Sindicatos Potenciales, siempre que:
0] dicho Sindicado Potencial haya formalizad{: 5
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(@) un acuerdo de confidencialidad con las disposiciones habituales
relativas al uso de Informacién Confidencial y de conformidad con
cualquier requisito aplicable del Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de
Adguisicion y del Reglamento sobre Abuso de Mercado (596/2014); y

(b) cartas de exenciébn de responsabilidad aplicables antes de la
divulgacion a la misma de cualquier informe elaborado en relacién
con la Oferta por los asesores de las Partes;

(ii) cualquier revelacion de Informacioén Confidencial a un Sindicado Potencial
en virtud de esta Clausula 6 se realice de conformidad con los términos de
la Clausula 12;

(iii) el Sindicado Potencial facilite la informacion y los documentos habituales de
conocimiento del cliente y de lucha contra el blanqueo de capitales que se
solicite razonablemente por las Partes; y

(iv) las Partes cumplan las disposiciones pertinentes del Reglamento de la
Oferta Publica de Adquisicién aplicables a cualquier sindicacion de capital
en un Periodo de Oferta;

6.4.3 una vez completada cualquier Sindicacién Permitida, cada Sindicado Permitido
tendra derechos de informacién limitados a la recepcion de:

(i) los estados financieros consolidados anuales auditados del Grupo Amber
JVCo, en un plazo de 180 dias a partir del ejercicio contable al que se
refieran, y los estados financieros consolidados trimestrales del Grupo
Amber JVCo, en un plazo de 60 dias a partir del trimestre al que se refieran;

y

(ii) otra informacidn en relacion con el Grupo Amber JVCo en la medida en que
lo apruebe el Comité de la Oferta o el Consejo de Administracion de
EquityCo a peticién de cualquiera de las Partes (o de su Miembro del Comité
de la Oferta), actuando razonablemente y siempre que el miembro del
Consejo de Administracién de EquityCo o el Miembro del Comité de la Oferta
del Fondo TDR o de los Fondos ISQ (segun proceda) no esté autorizado a
votar con respecto a dicha solicitud,;

6.4.4 cada Parte mantendra a la otra Parte razonablemente informada sobre el progreso
de cualquier Sindicacién Permitida;

6.4.5 cada Parte llevara a cabo cualquier Sindicacion Permitida de conformidad con el
Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicién, cualesquiera resoluciones,
solicitudes o requisitos de la CNMV y todas las demas leyes y reglamentos
aplicables (incluido el Reglamento sobre Abuso de Mercado [596/2014], la Ley de
Sociedades del Reino Unido, la Ley de Sociedades de Espafa, la Ley de Servicios
y Mercados Financieros de 2000, la Ley de Servicios Financieros de 2012 y la Ley
del Mercado de Valores de Esparia); y

6.4.6 ninguna de las Partes llevara a cabo ninguna Sindicacion Permitida con anterioridad
a la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor, si dicha Sindicacion Permitida requiriese la
introduccion de un cambio sustancial o la emision de un suplemento en relacion con
la documentacién relevante necesaria para implementar la Oferta, incluido, a titulo
meramente ilustrativo, un suplemento al Folleto de la Oferta.
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6.5 Excepto en relacidn con cualquier Sindicacién Permitida, cada Parte se compromete por el
presente a no sindicar, ceder o transferir (ni acordar sindicar, ceder o transferir) directa o
indirectamente, antes de la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor, y a procurar que sus Afiliadas no lo
hagan, ninguin derecho o participacion concedido a cada una de dichas Partes en virtud del
presente Acuerdo en relacion con la Oferta, incluida cualquier participacion en EquityCo y/o
cualquier otra JVCo, a ningun inversor conjunto adicional real o potencial para que participe
en la Oferta junto con dicha Parte o sus Afiliadas sin el consentimiento previo por escrito de
la otra Parte. Cualquier sindicacion, cesion o transferencia (o acuerdo al respecto) posterior
a la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor estara sujeta a los términos del Pacto de Accionistas.

7 Garantias, compromisos y reconocimientos
71 Cada una de las Partes garantiza a la otra que:

711  tiene el poder y la autoridad necesarios para celebrar el presente Acuerdo y no
existe ningln acuerdo, compromiso u otro entendimiento que:

(i) impediria o restringiria a dicha Parte la suscripcion y el cumplimiento de sus
obligaciones en virtud del presente Acuerdo o de cualquier acuerdo
contemplado en el presente Acuerdo que deba ser suscrito por dicha Parte,
incluida la realizacion de la Oferta y la consumacion de una operacién en
caso de éxito; o

(ii) exigiria a cualquiera de las Partes permitir a cualquier otra persona optar por
participar en las operaciones contempladas en el presente Acuerdo;

71.2 el presente Acuerdo, en el momento de su ejecucion, constituira una obligacién
valida, vinculante y exigible de dicha Parte;

71.3  ha obtenido las aprobaciones internas necesarias para suscribir el presente Acuerdo;

7.1.4 no ha adquirido Titulos de Participacion en el Objetivo en los 12 meses anteriores a
la fecha del presente Acuerdo;

71.5 no esta en posesion de informacién sustancial no pablica de conformidad con el
Reglamento sobre Abuso del Mercado (596/2014); y

7.1.6  ha recibido asesoramiento juridico sobre las implicaciones del Reglamento de la
Oferta Publica de Adquisicion en lo que se refiere a la Oferta.

7.2 Cada Parte se compromete, en relacién con la Oferta, a:

7.21  cumplir, procurar que sus Representantes y Afiliadas bajo su control cumplan, y a
ordenar de cualquier otro modo a sus Afiliadas y Representantes que no estén bajo
su control que cumplan:

(i) el Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicién y/o cualquier resolucion,
solicitud o requisito de la CNMV; y

(ii) todas las demas leyes y reglamentos aplicables (incluido el Reglamento
sobre Abuso de Mercado [596/2014], la Ley de Sociedades del Reino Unido,
la Ley de Sociedades de Espafa, la Ley de Servicios y Mercados
Financieros de 2000, la Ley de Servicios Financieros de 2012 y la Ley del
Mercado de Valores de Espana); y
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7.3

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.2

7.2.2 procurar (en la medida de sus posibilidades) que cada JVCo cumpla las leyes y
reglamentos mencionados en la Clausula 7.2.

Cada una de las Partes reconoce que, sin perjuicio de cualquier ofra disposicion del presente
Acuerdo, nada de lo dispuesto en el mismo obligara a ninguna de las Partes a actuar o
abstenerse de actuar de un modo que pudiera dar lugar a que ella o sus Afiliadas incumplieran
cualquier ley o reglamento aplicable o el Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicion.

Indemnizacion

Sin perjuicio de lo dispuesto en la Clausula 8.2, con respecto a cualquier responsabilidad
frente a cualquier tercero en virtud de cualquier Acuerdo de Indemnizaciéon (incluidas
cualesquiera Perdidas sufridas o incurridas en relacion con dicha responsabilidad)
(«Responsabilidad del Acuerdo de Indemnizacién»), si una de las Partes (o sus Afiliadas
[excluidos los miembros del Grupo Amber JVCo]) (el «Pagador») ha abonado a dicho
tercero menos de su Proporcion Relevante y la otra Parte (o sus Afiliadas [excluidos los
miembros del Grupo Amber JVCo]) (el «Beneficiario») ha abonado a dicho tercero mas de
su Proporcion Relevante, el Pagador abonara al Beneficiario la cantidad que sea necesaria
para que, tras tener en cuenta dicho pago, el Pagador y el Beneficiario hayan asumido sus
respectivas Proporciones Relevantes de la Responsabilidad del Acuerdo de Indemnizacion.

El Beneficiario no tendra derecho a percibir cantidad alguna del Pagador en virtud de la
Clausula 8.1 si la Responsabilidad del Acuerdo de Indemnizacién resulta directamente del
fraude, dolo o negligencia del Beneficiario, o del incumplimiento por parte del Beneficiario
de sus obligaciones frente a cualquier tercero en virtud del mismo, en cada caso segun
determine un juzgado o tribunal arbitral competente en sentencia firme e inapelable (o en
virtud de un acuerdo de resolucién en relacion con la misma).

El Pagador abonara cualquier importe pagadero en virtud de la Clausula 8.1 en o antes de
la fecha que corresponda a 30 dias después de su vencimiento y exigibilidad.

Todos los pagos efectuados por el Pagador en relacion con cualquier Responsabilidad del
Acuerdo de Indemnizacion se realizaran en su totalidad sin compensacién o reconvencion
alguna y sin deduccion fiscal. Si el Pagador ha de practicar una deduccion fiscal por ley, el
importe del pago exigible de este se aumentara hasta una cantidad que (tras deducciones
fiscales) resulte en el equivalente al pago que habria sido exigible si no se hubiera requerido
practibar ninguna deduccion fiscal.

Retirada y resolucién

Antes de la Fecha de Presentacion, cualquiera de las Partes podra retirarse de la Oferta y
resolver el presente Acuerdo mediante notificacion por escrito a la otra Parte. Cada Parte
también notificara a la otra Parte con prontitud si su comité de inversiones u érgano de
aprobacion equivalente deja de apoyar la Oferta, y las ofras Partes podran considerar que dicha
notificacion constituye una notificacion de retirada de la Oferta en virtud de la presente
Clausula 9.1.

Si una Parte se retira de la Oferta de conformidad con la Clausula 9.1 anterior;

9.21 dicha Parte saliente (la «Parte Saliente») dejara de tener derechos en virtud del
presente Acuerdo, pero seguira sujeta a las obligaciones aplicables establecidas en las
Clausulas 1 (Definiciones e interpretacion), 5 (Cese de negociacion), 6(Exclusividad y
sindicacion), 10 (Costes de operacion), 13 (Cesion y ofras operaciones), 14
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(Modificaciones y renuncias), 15 (Nulidad parcial) y 18 (Legislacion aplicable y
Jjurisdiccion); y

9.2.2 la Parte restante (la «Parte Restante») tendra derecho a avanzar y completar la
Oferta sin la participacién de la Parte Saliente.

9.3 Salvo las obligaciones establecidas en las clausulas 1 (Definiciones e interpretacion), 5
(Cese de la negociacién), 8 (Exclusividad y sindicacion), 7 (Garantias, compromisos y
reconocimientos), 8 (Indemnizacion), 9 (Retirada y resolucién), 10 (Costes de la operacion),
13 (Cesion y otras operaciones), 14 (Modificaciones y renuncias), 15 (Nulidad parcial) y 18
(Legislacion aplicable y jurisdiccién), y los derechos acumulados de cualquiera de las
Partes, que sobreviviran a la resolucion del presente Acuerdo, las disposiciones del
presente Acuerdo se resolveran en el momento en que se produzca la primera de las
siguientes circunstancias:

9.3.1 la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor;
9.3.2 la CNMV no autoriza la Oferta;

9.3.3 después de la Fecha de Presentacion, (i) las Partes acuerdan, con sujecion al
Reglamento de la Oferta Publica de Adquisicién, la retirada de la Oferta, o (ii) las
condiciones de la Oferta no se cumplen ni se renuncia a ellas a tiempo, dejando sin
efecto la Oferta;

9.3.4 el 21 de septiembre de 2023, si el Folleto de Oferta no se ha presentado ante la
CNMV en dicha fecha; y

9.3.5 las Partes acuerdan por escrito resolver el presente Acuerdo.

10 Costes de la operacioén

10.1 Los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta, los Costes ISQ y/o los Costes TDR unicamente se
contraeran de conformidad con el Presupuesto o, en su defecto, con el acuerdo previo de
las Partes, y el Presupuesto no podra modificarse sin la aprobacién previa de las Partes.

10.2 Si se completa la Oferta, las JVCo pagaran todos los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta de
conformidad con la Clausula 10.3 (segun proceda). Cada Parte pagara, en la medida en
que sea necesario, cualquier Coste de la Oferta Conjunta pagadero antes de la Fecha de
Entrada en Vigor de forma prorrateada en las Proporciones Relevantes mediante préstamo
a cualquier JVCo o cualquier otro método que las Partes acuerden.

10.3 BidCo abonar3 los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta relacionados con la Operacién y FinCo los
Costes de la Oferta Conjunta relacionados con la Financiacién, en cada caso segun lo
previsto en el Documento de Estructura.

10.4 Con sujeciéon a la Clausula 11, sin perjuicio de los términos de cualquier Carta de
Compromiso entre cualquier Parte o cualquier JVCo, por una parte, y cualquier asesor, por
otra, y con independencia de las proporciones en que cualquier asesor pretenda recuperar
o efectivamente recupere de la Parte o de cualquiera de ellas, si la Oferta no se completa,
todos los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta seran abonados por cada Parte de forma prorrateada
en las Proporciones Relevantes y, en la medida en que sea necesario, cada Parte
emprendera todas las medidas que sean necesarias para hacer efectivo dicho reparto
proporcional acordado de la responsabilidad (incluida, si fuera necesario, la aportacion de
su parte de los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta a cualquier JVGa)

7
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10.5 Todos los costes, honorarios y gastos incurridos por una Parte en relacién con la Oferta sin
la aprobacion previa por escrito de la otra Parte correran por cuenta de dicha Parte.

10.6  Sin perjuicio de lo dispuesto en la Clausula 10.7, si una Parte pasa a ser una Parte Saliente,
la Parte Saliente Unicamente sera responsable de los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta
devengados hasta la fecha de retirada (hayan sido o no facturados en ese momento) de
forma prorrateada en funcién de su Proporcién Relevante (inmediatamente antes de dicha
retirada) o segln acuerden las Partes. Cualquier Parte Saliente abonara dicha parte de los
Costes de la Oferta Conjunta previa peticion en cada momento, tras la presentacion a dicha
Parte de cada factura pertinente. Sin perjuicio de lo dispuesto en la frase siguiente, una
Parte Saliente no sera responsable de ninguna comisién o similar de cualquier asesor de o
en nombre de cualquier JVCo y/o de cualquiera de las Partes que preste servicios de
asesoramiento financiero en la que se incurra en relacion con la Oferta o de otro modo. Si
cualquiera de las Partes o sus respectivas Afiliadas (actuando por si mismas fuera del
alcance de este Acuerdo) emprende alguna medida después de la terminacién del
nombramiento de cualquiera de dichos asesores que resulte en el pago de comisiones o
similares a dicho asesor, dicha Parte sera la Unica responsable del pago integro de dichas
comisiones.

10.7  Siuna Parte Restante (o cualquiera de sus Afiliadas) completa la adquisicién de, o cualquier
operacion similar que implique a, Objetivo o una participacion de control en su negocio, ya
sea sola o conjuntamente con otra persona, una Parte Saliente sera reembolsada por dicha
Parte Restante por todos los Costes de la Oferta Conjunta previamente abonados por la
Parte Saliente (de conformidad con la Clausula 10.6) después de su fecha de retirada de
conformidad con la Clausula 10.1, siempre que dicha adquisicién se complete en los 12
meses siguientes a la retirada de la Parte Saliente.

11 Compromiso, informes y confianza

11.1  Cada una de las Partes reconoce que, en la fecha del presente Acuerdo, cualquiera de las
Partes o una de sus Afiliadas han suscrito Cartas de Compromiso y se benefician de todos
los Informes y Cartas de Confianza. En la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor o con anterioridad a
la misma, cada una de las Partes hara todo lo razonablemente posible por procurar que las
Cartas de Compromiso y cualesquiera derechos que esta o cualquiera de sus Afiliadas
puedan tener en virtud del Informe y las Cartas de Confianza se noven y amplien, con efecto
a mas tardar inmediatamente antes de la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor, a EquityCo y/o a
cualquiera de las otras JVCo, de forma que en la Fecha de Entrada en Vigor o con
posterioridad a la misma, EquityCo y/o cualquiera de las otras JVCo tengan derecho a
reclamar a cada asesor en virtud de una Carta de Compromiso o de un Informe y Carta de
Confianza y cualquier pago de honorarios y gastos sera efectuado por: (i) EquityCo y/o
cualquiera de las otras JVCo; o (ii) cualquiera de las Partes (que se hara cargo de EquityCo
y/o cualquiera de las otras JVCo).

11.2 En la medida en que los derechos y obligaciones de cualquiera de las Partes o de una de
sus Afiliadas en virtud de una Carta de Compromiso o de un Informe y Carta de Confianza
no sean novados a EquityCo y/o a cualquiera de las otras JVCo, hasta el momento en que
una Carta de Compromiso o un Informe y Carta de Confianza en particular sea novada:

11.21 cada una de las Partes emprendera, y se asegurara de que cualquiera de sus
Afiliadas emprenda, todas las medidas razonablemente solicitadas por EquityCo,
cualquiera de las otras JVCo y/o la otra Parte para realizar la recuperacién en virtud

de dicha Carta de Compromiso o Informe y Cartajde-Confiarza—y-dara-cuenta a
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EquityCo y/o cualquiera de las otras JVCo de cualquier cantidad asi recuperada (y
mantendra dichas cantidades en fideicomiso para EquityCo y/o cualquiera de las
otras JVCo) de cualquier reclamacién o derecho con respecto a dicha Carta de
Compromiso o Informe y Carta de Confianza; y

11.2.2 EquityCo y/o cualquiera de las otras JVCo indemnizara y protegera (de forma
continuada) a cada Parte y a cada una de sus Afiliadas que sea parte de una Carta
de Compromiso de y frente a (y de pagar previa peticion una cantidad igual a) todas
y cada una de las Pérdidas incurridas o sufridas en relacion con dicha Carta de
Compromiso, siempre que dicha Parte actle de conformidad con los términos de la
Carta de Compromiso.

12 Confidencialidad y anuncios

121 Cada Parte tratara, y se asegurara de que sus Afiliadas a las que revele Informacion
Confidencial traten, como estrictamente confidencial toda la Informacion Confidencial.

12.2 Cada Parte reconoce que se divulgarda una copia de este Acuerdo como parte de la
informacion incluida en el Folleto de la Oferta.

12.3 Cada una de las Partes reconoce, e informara a sus Afiliadas a las que revele Informacion
Confidencial, que parte o la totalidad de la Informacién Confidencial puede ser informacion
que no sea publica o que no esté disponible de forma general y que sea de un tipo tal que
una persona que disponga de dicha informacién tendria prohibido o restringido utilizarla
para negociar con los titulos de Objetivo en virtud del Reglamento sobre Abuso de Mercado,
la Parte V de la Ley del Cdédigo Penal de 1993, la Ley del Mercado de Valores de Espaiia,
el Caodigo Penal de Espafia u otras leyes aplicables sobre operaciones con informacion
privilegiada, abuso de mercado o similares.

12.4 Sin perjuicio de lo dispuesto en las Clausulas 12.5 a 12.6, cada una de las Partes se
compromete con la otra a no hacer uso de la Informacién Confidencial (salvo para el
cumplimiento de sus obligaciones en virtud del presente Acuerdo) ni revelarla a ninguna
persona, y a procurar que sus Afiliadas a las que revele Informacién Confidencial no lo
hagan, salvo con el consentimiento previo por escrito de las Partes.

12,5 Cada una de las Partes podra revelar Informacién Confidencial:
12.5.1 asus Representantes y a sus Afiliadas;

12.5.2 a cualquier asesor profesional en la medida en que dicha persona necesite
estrictamente acceder a esa Informacién Confidencial con el fin de evaluar,
negociar, asesorar o ejecutar la Oferta, siempre que dicha Parte:

(i) informe a dicha persona de que la Informacidén Confidencial es confidencial
y de la existencia y términos de esta Clausula 12; y

(ii) procure que dicha persona cumpla las disposiciones de la presente Clausula
12 como si fuera parte de las mismas; y

12.5.3 en la medida en que lo exija:

() cualquier orden, directiva o resolucion de cualquier tribunal competente,
organismo gubernamental, regulador o supervisor;

(ii) las leyes o reglamentos de cualquier pais con competencia sobre los
asuntos de la Parte en cuestiéon; o
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12.6

13
131

13.2

14
14.1

14.2

15

(i) cualquier bolsa de valores, autoridad de cotizacién o cualquier organismo
regulador o supervisor (incluida la CNMV), siempre que (en la medida en
que lo permita la ley) consulte con la otra Parte el contenido de dicha
divulgacion y, en cualquier caso, divulgue Unicamente la informacién minima
necesaria para satisfacer dicho requisito.

Las Clausulas 12.1 y 12.4 no se aplicaran a la Informacién Confidencial que:
12.6.1 en el momento de la divulgacion sea de dominio publico;

12.6.2 pase posteriormente a ser de dominio publico como consecuencia de un modo
distinto al incumplimiento del presente Acuerdo;

12.6.3 una Parte pueda demostrar, a satisfaccion razonable de la otra Parte, que ha sido
desarrollada de forma independiente por dicha Parte, sus Afiliadas, Representantes
0 asesores profesionales; o bien

12.6.4 una Parte pueda demostrar, a satisfaccion razonable de la otra Parte, que ya se
encontraba en su posesion legal o en la de cualquiera de sus Afiliadas o asesores
profesionales y que esta libre de cualquier obligacion de secreto o confianza, o que
posteriormente llegue a estar legalmente en posesion de una Parte o de cualquiera
de sus Afiliadas o asesores profesionales a través de una tercera fuente que no
tenga ninguna obligacién de confidencialidad en relacion con dicha Informacion
Confidencial.

Cesion y otras operaciones

El presente Acuerdo es personal para las Partes y ninguna de ellas podra ceder, transferir,
hipotecar, gravar, subcontratar, declarar un fideicomiso sobre o negociar de cualquier otra
forma con cualquiera de sus derechos y obligaciones en virtud del presente Acuerdo.

Nada de lo dispuesto en el presente Acuerdo tiene por objeto, ni se considerara que tiene
por objeto, establecer ningln tipo de asociacion entre cualquiera de las Partes, constituir a
cualquiera de las Partes como agente de |a otra, 0 autorizar a cualquiera de las Partes a
contraer o suscribir compromisos en nombre o por cuenta de la otra.

Modificaciones y renuncias

Ninguna modificacion o renuncia a cualquiera de las disposiciones del presente Acuerdo
sera efectiva a menos que se haga por escrito y esté firmada por cada una de las Partes o
en su nombre.

Ningun retraso u omision por cualquiera de las partes en el ejercicio de cualquier derecho
0 recurso previsto por la ley o en virtud del presente Acuerdo constituird una renuncia a
dicho derecho o recurso.

Nulidad parcial

Si alguna de las disposiciones del presente Acuerdo se considerara ilegal, invalida o
inoponible, en su totalidad o en parte, en virtud de cualquier disposicion o norma juridica o
de otro tipo, se considerara que dicha disposicidn (o parte de ella), en esa medida, no forma
parte del presente Acuerdo, pero la legalidad, validez y oponibilidad del resto del Acuerdo
no se veran afectadas.
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16 Ejemplares

Este Acuerdo se podra firmar en cualquier cantidad de ejemplares y por las Partes en
ejemplares separados, y cada ejemplar constituira un original de este Acuerdo y todos los
cuales, en su conjunto, constituiran un Unico y mismo instrumento. El presente Acuerdo no
entrara en vigor hasta que cada una de las Partes haya firmado al menos un ejemplar.

17 Derechos de terceros

La Ley de Contratos (Derechos de Terceros) de 1999 no se aplicara a este Acuerdo y a
ninguna persona que no sea parte de este Acuerdo podra ejercer ninguna disposicion del
mismo.

18 Legislacion aplicable y jurisdiccion

18.1 El presente Acuerdo y cualesquiera obligaciones extracontractuales derivadas del mismo o
relacionadas con él (incluidas cualesquiera obligaciones extracontractuales derivadas de la
negociacion de la operacion contemplada en el presente Acuerdo) se regiran e interpretaran
de conformidad con las leyes de Inglaterra y Gales.

18.2 Las Partes acuerdan irrevocablemente que los tribunales de Inglaterra tendran jurisdiccion
exclusiva para resolver cualquier disputa o reclamacion que surja de o en relacién con este
Acuerdo (incluida una disputa relacionada con cualquier obligacién no contractual que surja
de o en relacion con este Acuerdo o la negociacion de la operacién contemplada por este
Acuerdo).
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Anexo 1
Partes

Parte A - Fondo TDR

1. TDR Capital V L.P.,, una sociedad comanditaria inglesa, segun se constituya en cada
momento, con nimero de registro LP022040 y domicilio social sito en 20 Bentinck Street,
Londres W1U 2EU

Parte B - Fondos 1SQ

1. ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (UST), LP, sociedad comanditaria de las Islas Caiman,
con domicilio social sito en c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Gran Caiman, KY1-1104, Islas Caiman

2. I1SQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (USTE), LP, sociedad comanditaria de las Islas Caiman,
con domicilio social sito en c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Gran Caiman, KY1-1104, Islas Caiman

3. ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Ill, LP, sociedad comanditaria de las Islas Caiman, con
domicilio social sito en ¢/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Gran Caiman, KY1-1104, Islas Caiman

4, I1SQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (EU), LP, sociedad comanditaria especial (société en
commandite spéciale), con domicilio social en 6, rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453 Luxemburgo,
Gran Ducado de Luxemburgo
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Anexo 2
Pliego de condiciones
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EL PRESENTE ACUERDO SE HA SUSCRITO EN LA FECHA INDICADA EN SU
ENCABEZADO

[Consta firma]

debidamente autorizado y en nombre y representacion de

TDR Capital V L.P.

Firmado: TDR Capital General Partner V L.P., su socio colectivo
Firmado: TDR Capital General Partner V Limited, su socio colectivo

Cargo: Administradora

DAVID RAPADO HERNANDEZ

Traductor-Intérprete Jurado de Ingiés
Nuri. 6257

[Pégina de firmas - Acuerdo de Oferta Conjunta




[Consta firma]

debidamente autorizado y en nombre y representacion de
ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Ill, L.P.

Firmado: ISQ Global Fund Ill GP, LLC, su socio colectivo
Firmado: ISQ Holdings, LLC, su miembro Unico

Cargo: Gestor

DAVID RAPADO HERNANDEZ

Traductor-Intérprete Jurado de Inglés
Nim. 6257

[Pégina de firmas - Acuerdo de Oferta Conjynta]




[Consta firma]

debidamente autorizado y en nombre y representacion de
ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (UST), L.P.

Firmado: 1SQ Global Fund lll GP, LLC, su socio colectivo
Firmado: 1SQ Holdings, LLC, su miembro tnico

Cargo: Gestor

DAVID RAPADO HERNANDEZ

Traductor-Intérprete Jurado de Inglés
Num. 6257

[Pégina de firmas - Acuerdo de Oferta Conjunta]



[Consta firma]

debidamente autorizado y en nombre y representacion de
ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (USTE), L.P.
Firmado: ISQ Global Fund Il GP, LLC, su socio colectivo
Firmado: ISQ Holdings, LLC, su miembro tnico

Cargo: Gestor

DAVID RAPADO HERMANDEZ

Traductor-Intérprete Jurado de Ingiés
NOm. 6257

[Pagina de firmas - Acuerdo de Oferta Conjunta]



[Consta firma]

debidamente autorizado y en nombre y representacion de
ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Ill (EU), L.P.

Firmado: | Squared Capital Advisors (US) LLC, actuando en su calidad de gestor de fondos de
inversion alternativos

Cargo: Socio director

[Pégina de firnas - Acuerdo de Oferta Conjunta]



«Don David Rapado Hernandez, Traductor Jurado de inglés, en virtud de titulo
otorgado por el Ministerio de Asuntos Exteriores, Union Europea y Cooperacién,
certifica que la que antecede es traduccion fiel y exacta al espafnol de un
documento redactado en inglés.

En Madrid, a 15 de septiembre de 2023»

Firma:

Traductor-Intérprete Jurado de Inglés
im. 6257 ‘
NUm A
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ANEXO 7

Certificaciéon de la informacién financiera individual no auditada del Oferente a
29 de febrero de 2024



Traducci6n al inglés a efectos informativos / English translation for information purposes only

CERTIFICACION DE LOS CERTIFICATE OF THE JOINT
ADMINISTRADORES DIRECTORS OF AMBER
MANCOMUNADOS DE AMBER EQUITYCO, S.L.U.

EQUITYCO, S.L.U.

En Madrid, el dia 4 de marzo de 2024, los In Madrid, on 4 March 2024, the joint directors
administradores mancomunados de Amber of Amber EquityCo, S.L.U. (the “Company"),
EquityCo, S.L.U. (la “Sociedad”), estos son, i.e., Mr Mohamed Adel E!-Gazzar and Mr Gary
D. Mohamed Adel El-Gazzar y D. Gary Lindsay Lindsay (the “Joint Directors”)

(los “Administradores Mancomunados”)

CERTIFICAN

Que el documento que se acomparia
como Anexo a la presente certificacion
incorpora:

(i) el balance de situacién de la
Sociedad a 29 de febrero de
2024;y

(ii) la cuenta de pérdidas vy
ganancias correspondiente al
periodc comprendido entre el
17 de mayo de 2023 (fecha de
constitucion de la Sociedad) y
el 29 de febrero de 2024.

Que la Sociedad no estd obligada a
someter su informacién financiera a
revision por auditor por cumplir los
requisitos establecidos en el articulo
263 del texto refundido de la Ley de
Sociedades de Capital aprobado por
Real Decreto Legislativo 1/2020, de 2
de julio (la “Ley de Sociedades de
Capital”).

Que el 6rgano de administracién de la
Sociedad no ha procedido a formular
las cuentas anuales dado que, de
acuerdo con el articulo 253 de la Ley de
Sociedades de Capital, la Sociedad
debera formular las cuentas
individuales  correspondientes al
ejercicio cerrado a 31 de diciembre de
2023 en el plazo de tres meses a contar
desde el cierre del referido ejercicio.

CERTIFY

1 That the document attached as
Schedule to this certificate includes the
following:

)] the balance sheet of the
Company as at 29 February
2024; and

(ii) the profit and loss account for
the period between 17 May
2023 (i.e., incorporation date of
the Company) and 29 February
2024.

2 That the Company is not required to
submit its financial information for
review by an auditor as it meets the
requirements set forth in Article 263 of
the consolidated text of the Spanish
Companies Act approved by Royal
Legislative Decree 1/2020, of 2 July
(the “Spanish Companies Act’).

3 That the management body of the
Company has not proceeded to
prepare the annual accounts since, in
accordance with article 253 of the
Spanish Companies Act, the Company
shall draft its individual annual accounts
for the financial year ended on 31
December 2023 within three months
from the end of such financial year.



Y, para que asi conste, expiden este certificado In witness whereof, we issue this certificate in
en Madrid, a 4 de marzo de 2024. Madrid, on 4 March 2024.



Los Administradores Mancomunados de la Sociedad / The Joint Directors of the
Company

D./ Mr Mohamed El Gazzar



Los Administradores Mancomunados de la Sociedad / The Joint Directors of the
Company

D./ Mr Gary Lindsay



ANEXO

Balance de Situaciéon

Balance de Situacion

ACTIVO e 2023 ¥
A) ACTIVO CORRIENTE 2.261,78
Ill. Deudores comerciales y otras cuentas a cobrar 133,58
3. Otros deudores 133,58
472 HACIENDA PUBLICA, IVA SOPORTADO 133,58
VII. Efectivo y otros activos liquidos equivalentes 2.128,20
572 BANCOS E INSTITUCIONES DE CREDITO 2.128,20
TOTAL ACTIVO 2.261,78

PASIVO 2023

A) PATRIMONIO NETO 2.261,78
A-1) Fondos Propios 2.261,78
|. Capital 3.000,00
1. Capital escriturado 3.000,00
100 CAPITAL SOCIAL 3.000,00
VII. Resultado del ejercicio -738,22
B) PASIVO CORRIENTE 0
V. Acreedores comer. y otras cuentas a pagar 0
2. Otros acreedores 0
TOTAL PATRIMONIO NETO Y PASIVO 2.261,78




Cuenta de Pérdida y Ganancias

CUENTA DE PERDIDAS Y- GANANCIAS e T
7. Otros gastos de explotacién -738,22

623 SERVICIOS PROFESIONALES -736,39
626 SERVICIOS BANCARIOS Y SIMILAR -1,83
A) RESULTADO DE LA EXPLOTACION -738,22
B) RESULTADO ANTES DE IMPUESTOS -738,22
C) RESULTADO DEL EJERCICIO -738,22




ANEXO 8

Copia de las cuentas anuales combinadas de ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund IlI
relativas al ejercicio 2022, auditadas por PricewaterhouseCoopers



ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT

Combined Statement of Assets, Liabilities and Partners’ Capital

December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

Assets
Investments in portfolio companies, at fair value (cost $3,047,558,263,
net of transaction vehicle taxes of SN
Cash
Unrealized appreciation on forward foreign currency contracts, at fair value
Options purchased, at fair value (premiums paid $14,904,784)
Deferred loan costs
Deferred investment costs

Total assets

Liabilities and partners’ capital
Liabilities
Loan payable
Unrealized depreciation on forward foreign currency contracts, at fair value
Options written, at fair value (premiums received $6,444,719)
Placement fees payable
Interest payable
Management fees payable
Due to Investment Manager
Options premium payable
Professional fees payable
Administration fees payable
Due to affiliates
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Partners’ capital
Total liabilities and partners’ capital

R

38,090,306
9,850,218

!

$  3,780,066,076

$ 2,023,850,000

—
S
w
(=
=3}
~J
O

E >

S
g
3
N
N~
N
O

) i

1,728,711,076
$ 3,780,066,076

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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ISQ Global Infrastructute Funds III

Combined Condensed Schedule of Investments
December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

% of Ownership
Partners’ % of
Investments in Portfolio Companies Industry Cost Fair Value Capital Investment
Equity investments

East Asia
BDx Asia Data Center ? Data Center $ — $ _ - _
AGEP | Usliis [ KB ™ BB
SoilCo Py Waste Management By R [ v
Other Various Ever. - [

Toul Bas Asi e eEEe BR

Europe
Agateko Ple Powes and uies g P e s
EXA Infrastructure 4 Telecommunications [ g et [ By
Cube Green Energy * Energy [t [ | i
Cube Cold Butope ™ Cold storage W [Ty B B
Lighten 1 Daa Centes P R o prn
Otber Various e wemE . WE._

Toul Europe  pwemer | pasm W

North America
VLS Environmental Solutions ! Waste Management Pt [ [ e,
KIO Networks 2 Data Center KT MR ree B
Stake Center Locating (1% Utilities [ [ B [
HTEC Hydrogen Technology &

Energy Corporation ¢ Energy KR R [ BB

Ezee Fiber Texas 7 Telecommunications [ P e [ W
Other Various - __ -

Total North America

Total equity investments

Total investments in portfolio

companies

Transaction vehicle tax

Total investment in portfolio companies

]
]
)

N S N
k | I | R R

$ 3,047,558,263  §

|
|

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITI

Combined Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)

December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

% of
Partners’

Derivative Contracts Expiration Date Notional Cost/Proceeds Fair Value Capital
BRI
SRR
[ e e T [ [E BERE 0 O [
RS
sl TR T i [ BE s L [0 e 8 [0
10 o
[ e e P L. L [ 2 .
it T2 e R
o e R | B RS B e s
[ T
Lioa intea o S [ R (27 R L
fa e T
S e e R B R BeRRR g [eas g
[ e
R R IR e Ea L o [0 R
i g
ot S L B L H, bR
Total currency options purchased $ 14,904,784 $ 9,850,218 0.57 %
Currency options written
L i S
R R TR By N B [ o i
RGN,
R [ R R R iRy L
[ e T T
[k g R e o S TR [ O [ e Lo ] L
L e el
L S R B RO T [ By
L e R
LR R [t B N R o [ e
(20 o ke g
| o Tk e [ RO RO TR T o2
[ T R e
BRI R W D [ A L [l
i e
e e o R N R | SR .
Total currency options written $ (6,444,719) § (3,772,429) 0.22) %

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITI

Combined Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)
December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

% of
Partners’

Derivative Contracts Fair Value Capital
Forward foreign currency contracts

EUR - Forward Currency $ 36,370,767 210 %

AUD - Forward Currency 995,214 0.06

GBP — Forward Currency 724,325 0.04
Total net unrealized appreciation on forward foreign currency contracts $ 38,090,306 2.20%
EUR - Forward Currency $ 917,247y (0.05) %
AUD - Forward Currency (260,376) (0.02)
JPY — Forward Currency (240,600) (0.01)
TWD - Forward Currency (32,456) (0.00)
Total net unrealized depreciation on forward foreign currency contracts $ (1,450,679) (0.08) %
EUR — Euro

AUD — Australian Dollar
GBP — Pound Sterling

JPY - Japanese Yen

IDR — Indonesian Rupiah
CAD — Canadian Dollar
TWD — New Taiwan Dollar

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IT1

Combined Statement of Operations
Fort the year ended December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

Expenses
Management fees $ S
Interest and loan expense 68,876,853

Investment costs
Professional fees

Administration fees

Organization costs 333,602
Total expenses 298,806,399
Management fee offset (Note 7) (41,518,743)
Net expenses e
Net investment loss (257,287,656)

Net change in unrealized gains on investments in portfolio companies and derivative contracts
Portfolio companies (net of transaction vehicle taxes of $j N

Forward foreign cutrency contracts 26,902,892
Option contracts 7,529,559
Net unrealized gains on portfolio companies and derivative contracts 606,401,056
Net increase in partners’ capital from operations $ 349,113,400

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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ISQ Global Infrasttructure Funds III

Combined Statement of Changes in Partners’ Capital

For the year ended December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

General
Partner

Carry
Partner

Limited
Partners

Total

Partners’ capital, beginning of year $ -
Capital contributions -
Placement costs |
Syndication costs -
Net increase in partners’ capital

from operations [ |
Accrued carried interest allocation -

Partners’ capital, end of year $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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$ 879,786,009
502,240,249

(19,081)

$ 1,728,711,076



ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2022
(Presented in United States Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net increase in partners’ capital from operations $

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in partners’ capital from
operations to net cash used in operating activities:
Payment to purchase investments in portfolio companies
Proceeds on sale of investments in portfolio companies
Proceeds from sale of derivative contracts
Net change in unrealized gains on investments in portfolio companies
Net change in unrealized gains on forward foreign currency contracts
Net change in unrealized gains on option contracts
Amortization expense on deferred loan costs
Net decrease in operating assets:
Deferred investment costs
Due from affiliates
Net increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Interest payable
Management fees payable
Due to Investment Manager
Options premium payable
Professional fees payable
Administration fees payable
Due to affiliates
Other liabilities

4,373,778

(26,902,892)
(7,529,559)

[EN
S
N=l
N
N
(S8
o

s i

(11,012,845)

O3]
jen)
w
o
L2
oc

5

~
S
—
(=
—
-

d,

)

Net cash used in operating activities

(1,336,517,544)

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contributions, net change in capital call receivable
Loan proceeds received
Borrowing repayment
Payment of loan issuance costs
Syndication costs

(7,062,254)
(19,081)
Placement fees _

Net cash provided by financing activities

1,607,900,000
(797,100,000)

B i}

E

1,302,416,268

Change in cash

(34,101,276)

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Supplemental information
Interest paid

52,799,315
$ 18,698,039
$ 67,384,623

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITI

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

1. Organization and General

ISQ Global Infrastructure Pooling ITI, L.P. and ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund III, L.P. (collectively, “ISQ Funds
IIT”), are Cayman Islands exempted limited partnerships, organized on June 29, 2020 and May 20, 2020,
respectively, and had their initial closing and commenced operations on September 11, 2020. ISQ Global
Infrastructure Pooling ITT (EU), L.P. and ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund 11T (EU), L.P. (collectively, “EU Funds
III”), are Luxemburg limited partnerships organized on June 19, 2020 and June 17, 2020, respectively, and had
their preliminary initial closing and commenced operations on September 11, 2020. ISQ Global Infrastructure
Pooling ITT (USTE), L.P. and ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund IIT (USTE), L.P. (collectively, “USTE Funds III”)
are Cayman Islands exempted limited partnerships organized on June 29, 2020 and May 20, 2020, respectively, and
had their preliminary initial closing and commenced operations on September 11, 2020. ISQ Global Infrastructure
Fund HI (UST), L.P. (“UST Fund III”) is a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership organized on
March 10, 2020 and had its preliminary initial closing and commenced operations on September 11, 2020. ISQ
Global Infrastructure Fund I (UST), L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund III (USTE), L.P., and ISQ Global
Infrastructure Fund III, L.P., are registered with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority.

ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund III (UST) ATV, L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund IIT (USTE) ALV, L.P.,
ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund III (EU) ATV, L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Pooling III (USTE) AIV, LP, and
ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund II ATV, L.P. (collectively “ATV”) were organized as limited partnerships, under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. ATV commenced operations on December 11, 2020 and the general partner is
ISQ Global Fund HI GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. AIV will invest in direct or indirect
investments in non-U.S. Portfolio Companies, including investments in Portfolio Companies that are foreign
corporations. The AIV will invest alongside ISQ Funds III.

ISQGIF III (UST) U.S. ATV, L.P.,, ISQGIF I1I (USTE) U.S. A1V, L.P,, ISQGIF III U.S. A1V, L.P.,, ISQGIF 111
(EU) US. ALV, L. P, ISQGIF Pooling 111 (USTE) US ALV, LP, ISQGIF Pooling ITI US ALV, LP, and ISQGIF
Pooling III (EU) US ATV, LP (collectively “GIF IIT ATV”) were organized as limited partnerships pursuant to and
in accordance with the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act. GIF III ATV commenced operations

on March 18, 2021 and the general partner is ISQGIF IIT U.S. ATV GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

ISQ Global Infrastructure Pooling III, L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Pooling III (EU), L.P., ISQ Global
Infrastructure Pooling Il (USTE), L.P., are collectively referred to as the “Master Funds”. ISQ Global
Infrastructure Fund I, L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund IIT (EU), L.P., and ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund
III (USTE), L.P. are collectively referred to as the “Feeder Funds”. The Master Funds, the Feeder Funds,
UST Fund I, ATV and GIF III ATV are collectively referred to as the “ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITI”.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I had their first close on September 11, 2020, and the final closing date
was on April 1, 2022. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III expect to call a majority of the capital by the fifth
anniversary of the final admission date (the “Commitment Period”). The term of the ISQ Global Infrastructure
Funds III is expected to end on or about the tenth anniversary of the final closing date, unless ended eatlier or
extended in accordance with the provisions of the Partnership Agreement.

ISQ Global Funds IIT GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and ISQ Global Fund III Lux GP, S.arl, a
private limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg (the “Lux GP”)
(collectively the, “General Partner”), are the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III and EU Funds III’s general
partner, respectively and has overall responsibility for the affairs of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT and
EU Funds HL I Squared Capital Advisors (US) LLC (the “Investment Manager™), a Delaware limited liability
company and registered investment advisor, manages the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III investments.
ISQ Global Fund III Investors, L.P. (the “Carry Partner”), a limited partner and an affiliate of the General Partner,
funds the General Partner commitment and receives the carried interest (“Carried Interest”) distributions.
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I1I

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Investment Objective

The Master Funds, the Feeder Funds (through their investment in the Master Funds), UST Fund IIT and ATV will
seek to achieve returns by making equity and equity-related investments in infrastructure and infrastructure-related
assets globally, with a focus on North America, Europe, and selected growth economies in Asia and Latin America.
The Master Funds, UST Fund IIT and ATV may also invest in debt securities that have equity-like returns or an
equity component, or are related to their equity investments, including, without limitation, convertible debt,
mezzanine debt, bank loans and participations and other similar instruments.

For certain investments, other funds managed by the Investment Manager and affiliates are expected to invest
alongside ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIL. Such other funds will include ISQ Growth Markets Infrastructure
Fund LP (“Growth Markets Fund”), which will be offered the opportunity to co-invest with the Fund in all
investments in portfolio companies whose assets or operations are located primarily outside of the member states
of the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development as well as Chile, Colombia, Mexico and the
Republic of Korea (“Growth Jurisdictions”). Prior to the final close, investments made alongside ISQ Fund III are
generally expected to be allocated on a one-third to two-thirds basis. The Growth Matkets Fund is expected to
make certain other investments on its own, including any investment in a Growth Jurisdiction for which the total
equity contribution by ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III would not be anticipated to exceed the greater of

) N o ¢ . Following the final close, the General Partner may

adjust such investment allocations including with respect to previously made investments.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III expect to use leverage through both investment level financing and by
borrowing money with recourse to its assets and unfunded investors’ commitments.

The Feeder Funds and their affiliates create or utilize vatious entities to facilitate joint investments and to allow for
investments which have certain regulatory, tax or other considerations (““I'ransaction Vehicles”). The Feeder Funds
invest substantially all of their assets in the Master Funds. The Feeder Funds owned both directly and indirectly,
through Transaction Vehicles, [Jilif of the Master Funds at December 31, 2022.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

These combined financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) as applicable to investment companies and are presented
in U.S. dollars. The General Partner has determined that the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT are investment
companies following accounting and reporting guidance contained in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 946, Financial Services-Investment Companies.

Combined Financial Statements

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITT combined financial statements include the accounts of the Master Funds,
Feeder Funds, UST Fund III and GIF III AIV. Combined financial statements are presented because the ISQ
Global Infrastructure Funds III has a common management team, common investments, commonly financed
activities, common operations and defined methods of allocating expenses. All intercompany balances are
eliminated in the combination.
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Consolidation

In November 2020, the General Partner formed ISQ Hedge Co. Fund ITI, L.P. (“Hedge Co”), an exempted limited
partnership. The purpose of Hedge Co is to enter into foreign exchange hedging arrangements and other related
foreign currency transactions. Hedge Co is 100% owned by the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds II and
consolidated with these financial statements. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions, in particular the fair value of investments, that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the combined financial
statements and the amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the
estimates utilized in preparing the combined financial statements are reasonable and prudent; however, actual
results could differ from those estimates, and such difference could be material to the ISQ Global Infrastructure
Funds IIL

Cash

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT maintain cash accounts with Citibank, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. These balances will generally exceed federally insured limits. At December 31, 2022, there were no cash
equivalents.

Investment Transactions

Investment transactions are recorded on the date the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT have obtained the right
to demand the securities purchased or collect the proceeds of sale and has incurred an obligation to pay the price
of securities purchased or to deliver the securities sold, respectively. Legal and other costs incurred in connection
with the acquisition of investments are included in the cost of such investments.

Investment Valuation
Investments are measured at fair value as described in Note 3.
Allocations of Expenses

Partnership expenses are generally allocated based on the committed capital of investors, with the exception of
interest expense, management fees and investment costs (noted below), in accordance with the LPA. Interest
expense is generally allocated based on the attributable borrowings of such limited partner for the investment
fundings, management fees and partnership expenses. Management fees are allocated to investors based on the
management fees charged under the Partnership Agreement and any applicable side letter agreement.

Investment costs of consummated deals that are co-owned with the Growth Markets Fund and investment costs
of unconsummated deals intended to be co-owned with the Growth Markets Fund are shared with the Growth
Markets Fund.

At times, the General Partner of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds Il may offer co-investment opportunities
to existing investors of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III as well as to new prospective investors. Generally
the investment costs associated with consummated deals are shared with the co-investors. The investment costs
associated with unconsummated deals are generally borne by the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III unless
co-investors have agreed to pay such expenses.
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITI

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Income and Expense Recognition

Interest income is recognized on the accrual basis. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III record dividend
income and accrue interest income from private securities pursuant to the terms of the respective investment,
unless, in the case of dividend income, the General Partner determines that the portfolio company does not have
positive earnings in which case such dividend income is treated as a return of capital. In the case of proceeds
received from investments in debt investment vehicles and limited partnerships, the General Partner determines
the character of such proceeds and record any interest income, dividend income, realized gains or returns of capital
accordingly. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III record unrealized appreciation or depreciation on their
investments based upon the change in fair value of investments. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments
are recorded on the trade date basis using the specific identification method. Expenses are recorded as incurred.
Interest and dividend income are recorded net of any withholding taxes. Interest income is not accrued when
collection appears unlikely.

Investment Costs

Pre-acquisition costs incurred in connection with the evaluation of specific investments are deferred and capitalized
as a component of the cost basis of the investments when the transactions are consummated or are expensed as
investment costs when management believes the transaction will not be consummated.

Post-acquisition costs incurred in connection with the ongoing holding of investments are generally expensed as
incurred.

Deferred Loan Costs

Fees incurred in connection with obtaining the revolving credit facility (Note 8) were deferred and will be amortized
over the term of the facility. Amortization of deferred loan costs of | il 2:c included in interest and loan
expense on the combined statement of operations. As of December 31, 2022, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds
IIT had unamortized deferred loan costs of | NN

Foreign Cutrency Translation

The books and records of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT are maintained in U.S. dollars. Foreign currency
assets and liabilities are translated at foreign exchange rates in effect at the reporting date. Assets and liabilities
denominated in non-U.S. dollar currencies are translated into U.S. dollar equivalents using closing rates of exchange
on valuation dates, while revenues and expenses are translated at the daily spot rates of exchange prevailing at the
date of the transaction. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds HI do not isolate the portion of the results of
operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from
changes in the value of investments held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and net unrealized
gain or loss on investments.

Net realized foreign currency transaction gains or losses arise from currency gains or losses realized between the
trade and settlement dates on investment transactions and the difference between the amounts of foreign currency
denominated dividends, interest and foreign withholding taxes, if any, recorded on the ISQ Global Infrastructure
Funds IIT books and the U.S. dollar equivalent of the amounts actually received or paid. Net unrealized foreign
exchange translation gains and losses arise from changes in the values of assets and liabilities, other than
investments and forward foreign currency contracts, resulting from changes in exchange rates.
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ISQ Global Infrasttucture Funds III

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Options

The Master Funds, UST Fund 111, ATV and Hedge Co may purchase and sell put and call options. When purchasing
an option, the Master Funds, UST Fund 111, ATV and Hedge Co pay a premium which is included in the combined
statement of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital as an investment and subsequently marked-to-market to reflect
the current value of the option. Premiums paid for purchased options which expire are treated as realized losses.
Premiums paid for purchased call options which are exercised increase the cost basis of the investment purchased
pursuant to the call. Premiums paid for purchased put options that are exercised are treated as a reduction of the
proceeds from the sale of investment undetlying the put. When a purchased option is closed before expiration or
exercise, the Master Funds, UST Fund III, ATV and Hedge Co record a realized gain or loss equal to the difference
between the proceeds received upon closing and the premium paid.

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Master Funds, UST Fund IIT and ATV and Hedge Co may enter into forward foreign currency contracts in
connection with settling planned purchases or sales of securities or to hedge the currency exposure associated with
the Master Funds, UST Fund III and AIV’s investments. A forward currency contract is an agreement between
two parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price on a future date. Forward foreign currency contracts are fair
valued quarterly and the change in fair value is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss. Forward foreign currency
contracts are valued at the prevailing forward exchange rate of the underlying currencies. Realized gains and losses
equal to the difference between the fair value of the contract at the time it was opened and the fair value at the
time it was closed are recorded upon delivery or receipt of the currency or, if a forward currency contract is offset
by entering into another forward currency contract with the same broker, upon settlement of the net gain or loss.
These contracts may involve market risk in excess of the unrealized gain or loss reflected in the combined statement
of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital. The Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV may be exposed to risk if the
counterparties are unable to meet the terms of the contract or if there are movements in foreign currency values
that are unfavorable to the Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV.

Unrealized appreciation and depreciation relating to the Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV’s forward foreign
currency contracts are recorded on the combined statement of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital on a gross
basis. On the combined schedule of investments, derivatives contracts are presented gross by type of derivative
contract.

Organization Costs, Syndication Costs and Placement Fees

Organization costs incurred in connection with the organization of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III are
expensed on the combined statement of operations as incurred. Syndication costs and placement fees incurred in
the offering of interests in and the marketing of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT are charged to partners’
capital as incurred.

In accordance with the Partnership Agreement, total organization and syndication costs incurred by the limited
partners of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III exceeding an amount equal to [Jilf of commitments after the
final closing in the aggregate will be borne by the Investment Manager through a management fees offset. Total
cumulative organization and syndication costs incurred by the limited partners of the ISQ Global Infrastructure

Funds I1I through December 31, 2022 were SN

Cumulative placement fees that were incurred by the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III through

December 31, 2022 were SN

As discussed in Note 7, in accordance with the Partnership Agreement, management fees of the ISQ Global
Infrastructure Funds III are reduced by placement fees paid as well as any excess organization and syndication
costs.
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Income Taxes

As partnerships, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT themselves are not subject to income taxes in the
jurisdictions in which they have been legally formed, although some of the investment vehicles in which the ISQ
Global Infrastructure Funds IIT investments are held, may be subject to non-U.S., U.S. federal, state or local income
taxes. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITI records such provisions, if applicable. Interest, dividends and other
income realized by the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I from non-U.S. sources and capital gains realized on
the sale of securities of non-U.S. issuers may be subject to withholding and other taxes levied by the jurisdiction in
which the income is sourced. For non - U.S. partners invested in the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III, a
reduction in capital has been made for potential future withholding taxes on their allocable share of income from
U.S. sources, as required under current U.S. tax law. No tax liability or expenses have been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements for the partnerships.

Transaction Vehicles may also incur entity level taxes. Where applicable, the Transaction Vehicles use the liability
method of accounting for income taxes. Taxable income generally differs from net income for financial reporting
purposes due to temporary and permanent differences in the recognition of income and expenses. Defetred tax
assets and liabilities are recorded for temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts in the combined financial statements, using statutory tax rates in effect at the time the financial
statements are prepared. A valuation allowance is provided against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Certain Transaction Vehicles hold certain
portfolio investments for the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III. Any applicable income tax paid is reflected in
the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds’ combined statement of operations as a component of realized gain on
investments.

The General Partner determines whether a tax position of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT is more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based
on the technical merits of the position in accordance with the authoritative guidance for uncertainty in income
taxes. For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the combined
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. No accrual for uncertain tax positions has been made for
the year ended December 31, 2022. The General Partner does not expect that the total amount of unrecognized
tax benefits will materially change over the next twelve months.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT may take positions with respect to certain tax issues which depend on
legal interpretation or the interpretation of facts or applicable tax regulations. Should the relevant tax regulators
successfully challenge any such positions, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT might be found to have a tax
liability that has not been recorded in the combined financial statements. Also, the General Partner’s conclusions
regarding the uncertainty in income taxes may be subject to review and adjustment at a later date based on factors
including, but not limited to, on-going analyses of tax laws, regulations and interpretations thereof. The ISQ Global
Infrastructure Funds III files tax returns as prescribed by the tax laws of the jurisdictions in which it operates. In
the normal course of business, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III is subject to examination by the
jurisdictions in which it operates. At December 31, 2022, there were no examinations underway. The tax period
that remains subject to examination by the major tax jurisdictions under the current statute of limitations includes
tax periods since inception.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III accrues all interest and penalties under applicable tax laws as incurred.

There are no interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions recognized in the combined statement of
operations and the combined statement of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital.
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ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III

Notes to Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

3. Investments, at Fair Value

U.S. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The
three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV have the ability to access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

Level 3 Inputs that are unobservable.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
patticipants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics and other factors. An investment’s
level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the
General Partner. The General Partner considers observable data to be market data which is readily available,
regulatly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by multiple independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of an investment within the hierarchy
is based upon the pricing transparency of the investment and does not necessarily correspond to the General
Partner’s perceived risk of that investment.

In determining an instrument’s placement within the hierarchy, management separates the Master Funds, UST
Fund I and AIV’s investment portfolio into two categories: investments in portfolio companies and derivative
instruments.

Investments in Portfolio Companies

All of the Master Funds, UST Fund III and AIV’s investments in portfolio companies are classified within Level 3
as they have unobservable inputs, and trade infrequently or not at all. When observable prices are not available for

these securities, the General Partner uses one or more valuation techniques (e.g., primarily the income approach
and also the market approach) for which sufficient and reliable data is available. The market approach utilizes prices
and other relevant information generated by market transactions, type of security, size of the position, purchase
price, purchases of the same or similar securities by other investors, marketability, foreign exchange rates, degree
of liquidity, restrictions on the disposition, latest round of financing data, current financial position and operating
results among other factors. The income approach includes the discounted cash flow method which uses valuation
techniques to convert estimated future cash amounts (cash flows or earnings) adjusted as appropriate for liquidity,
credit, market and/or other risk factors to a single discounted present value amount.

The valuation process for Level 3 measurements is subject to review and oversight by the Master Funds and
UST Fund IIT’s valuation committee, which is comprised of senior members of the General Partner. In connection
with this process, valuation models are updated based on historical and projected financial information, observable
market data, market liquidity and other factors. Valuation results are assessed in light of industry trends, general
economic and market conditions and factors specific to each investment.
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Generally, the inputs used by the General Partner in estimating the value of Level 3 investments include the original
transaction price, marketability, restrictions on disposition, yield to maturity, current financial position, operating
results, internal cash flow projections, growth rates, recent transactions in the same or similar instruments,
completed or pending third-party transactions in the underlying investment or comparable issuers, subsequent
rounds of financing, estimated recovery from liquidation, recapitalizations and other transactions across the capital
structure, offerings in the equity or debt capital markets, EBITDA multiples of comparable companies or
transactions, reinvestment rates, discount rates, and changes in financial ratios or cash flows. Level 3 investments
may also be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, with the amount of such discount estimated
by the General Partner in the absence of market information. Assumptions used by the General Partner due to the
lack of observable inputs may significantly impact the resulting fair value and therefore the ISQ Global
Infrastructure Funds III results of operations.

Investments may be classified as Level 2 when market information becomes available, yet the investment is not
traded in an active market and/or the investment is subject to transfer restrictions, or the valuation is adjusted to
reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability.

Investments which are unrestricted and publicly traded in active matkets are valued based on the closing price on
the national exchange in which they are principally traded and are therefore classified within Level 1. The General
Partner does not adjust the quoted price of such investments even in situations where the Master Funds and
UST Fund III hold a large position and a sale could reasonably impact the quoted price. However, the price may
be discounted to reflect trading restrictions, if such restriction is an attribute of the security as determined by the
General Partner.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments can be exchange-traded or privately negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC”). Exchange-
traded derivatives, such as futures contracts and exchange-traded option contracts, are typically classified within
Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy depending on whether or not they are deemed to be actively traded.

OTC derivatives, including forwards and options contracts are valued by management using observable inputs,
such as quotations received from counterparties, dealers or brokers, whenever available and considered reliable. In
instances where models are used, the value of an OTC derivative depends upon the contractual terms of, and
specific risks inherent in, the instrument as well as the availability and reliability of observable inputs. Such inputs
include market prices for reference securities, yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates
and correlations of such inputs. Certain OTC derivatives, such as generic forwards and options, have inputs which
can generally be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified within Level 2.

Those OTC derivatives that have less liquidity or for which inputs are unobservable are classified within Level 3.

While the valuations of these less liquid OTC derivatives may utilize some Level 1 and/or Level 2 inputs, they also
include other unobservable inputs which are considered significant to the fair value determination.
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Due to the nature of the Master Funds, UST Fund III’s and AIV’s investments, fair values assigned at
December 31, 2022 may differ significantly from fair values that would have been used had a ready market for the
investments existed and such differences could be material to the combined financial statements.

The following table presents information about the Master Funds, UST Fund III and AIV’s investments measured
at fair value as of December 31, 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Portfolio Companies

Bquity Investments i P 1 I MRS SRR
Derivative Contracts

Forward Foreign Cutrency

Contracts - 38,090,306 - 38,090,306
Options — 9,850,218 - 9,850,218
Total $ - $ 47,940,524 $ -

Liabilities
Derivative Contracts
Forward Foreign Cutrency $ - $ (1,450,679) $ - $ (1,450,679)
Options - (3,772,429) = (3,772,429)
Total $ - $ (5,223,108) $ - $ (5,223,108)

Transfers of investments between different levels of the fair value hierarchy are recorded on the actual date of the
event of change in circumstances that cause the transfer. There were no transfers between levels during the petiod.

The following table includes purchases and transfers for year ended December 31, 2022 for financial instruments
classified within Level 3:

Transfers In/
Purchases Out of Level 3

Equity Investments _ $ =

The following tables summarizes the quantitative inputs and assumptions used for items categorized as recurring
Level 3 assets as of December 31, 2022:

Principal Unobservable Range of Weighted
Investment Fair Value Valuation Technique Input Input Values Average
Equity Investments $ B Discounted cash flows Discount rate Enws | &
Leverage ratio s -

4. Derivative Instruments

The Master Funds, UST Fund I1I and ATV and Hedge Co transact in forward foreign currency, currency options
contracts, and currency swap contracts primarily for managing foreign exchange risk.

The total fair values and notionals of derivative instruments at December 31, 2022 by contract type have been
disclosed on the combined schedule of investments and are representative of the level of activity for the period.
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The Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV and Hedge Co’s realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives
by contract type, for the year ended December 31, 2022 was:

Realized Untrealized

Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)
Forward Foreign Cutrency Contracts $ - $ 26,902,892
Optons Contracts — 7,529,559
Total Derivatives $ - $ 34,432,451

These amounts have been recognized as realized/unrealized losses on derivative contracts on the combined
statement of operations. As of December 31, 2022, the Master Funds, UST Fund I1I and ATV and Hedge Co held
the following forward foreign currency contracts outstanding:

Unrealized
Appreciation/
Currency to Deliver Currency to Receive Counterparty Style Settlement Date (Depreciation)

i
T
|||III||II|I||I||I|I
LIInIIIIIlIIIIIIII

$

W
[
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¥y
O
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n
~

>

The volume of options contracts held during the year ended is consistent with those listed on the consolidated
schedule of investments.

The significant accounting policies relating to recording of derivatives and related gains have been summarized in
Note 2.

In the normal course of business, the Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV and Hedge Co enter into agreements
with certain counterparties for derivative transactions. Certain of the Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV and
Hedge Co’s derivative contracts contain credit risk contingent provisions whereby if the Master Funds, UST Fund
IIT and ATV were to breach a covenant, the counterparty could demand additional collateral or require termination
or replacement of derivative instruments in a net liability position.
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Additionally, counterparties may immediately terminate derivative contracts if the Master Funds, UST Fund II1
and AIV fails to maintain sufficient asset coverage for its contracts or the partners’ capital declines by stated
percentages. These agreements contain among other conditions events of default and termination events, and
various covenants and representations. If the Master Funds, UST Fund III and AIV are not in compliance with
certain covenants in the agreements and such events are not cured by the Master Funds, UST Fund IIT and ATV
or waived by the counterparties, the counterparties may decide to curtail or limit extension of credit, and the Master
Funds, UST Fund I and ATV and Hedge Co may be forced to unwind their derivative positions which may result
in material losses. If the credit-risk-related contingent features underlying these agreements were triggered on
December 31, 2022, the Master Funds, UST Fund III and ATV would have sufficient coverage for its contracts.

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III are required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities
represented in the combined statement of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital to enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognized
assets and liabilities. These recognized assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that
are either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right
of setoff criteria: the amounts owed by the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I1I to another party are determinable,
the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT have the right to set off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the
other party, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds II intends to set off, and the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds
III right of setoff is enforceable by law. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III present derivative instruments
on a gross basis on the combined statement of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital.

At December 31, 2022, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I hold financial instruments and derivative
instruments that are eligible for offset in the combined statement of assets, liabilities and partners” capital and are
subject to a master netting arrangement. The master netting arrangement allows the counterparty to net applicable
collateral held on behalf of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III against applicable liabilities or payment
obligations of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds II to the counterparty. These arrangements also allow the
counterparty to net any of its applicable liabilities or payment obligations they have to the ISQ Global Infrastructure
Funds IIT against any collateral sent to the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIL

The following table provides disclosure regarding the potential effect of offsetting of recognized assets presented
in the combined statement of assets, liabilities and partners’ capital:

At December 31, 2022
Net Amounts
Gross Amounts  of Recognized
Offset in the  Assets Presented
Combined in the Combined Gross Amounts Not Offset in the

Statement of Statement of Combined Statement of Assets,
Assets, Assets, Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Gross Amounts Liabilities Liabilities
of Recognized  and Partners’ and Partners’ Financial Cash Collateral
Assets Capital Capital Instruments Received Net Amount
Forward Foreign
Currency Contracts ~ § 38,090,306  § - § 38,090,306 % (1,450,679) $ - $ 36,639,627
Option Contracts 9,850,218 — 9,850,218 (3,772,429) — 6,077,789
Total § 47,940,524 § - $ 47,940,524 § (5,223,108) § - § 42,717,416
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At December 31, 2022
Net Amounts
Gross Amounts  of Recognized

Offset in the Liabilities
Combined Presented in the Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Statement of Combined Combined Statement of Assets,

Assets, Statement of Liabilities and Partners” Capital
Gross Amounts Liabilities Assets,
of Recognized and Partners’ Liabilities and Financial Cash Collateral
Liabilities Capital Partners’ Capital  Instruments Posted Net Amount
Forward Foreign
Currency Contracts  § (1,450,679) $ - $ (1,450,679) $ 1,450,679 $ - % -
Option Contracts (3,772,429) - (3,772,429) 3,772,429 - -
Total $ (5,223,108) § - 9 (5,223,108) § 5,223,108 § - $ -
Partners’ Capital
At December 31, 2022, capital commitments and contributions were as follows:
Cumulative Cumulative
Capital Capital Recallable Unfunded Capital
Commitments Contributions Distributions Commitments % Funded

Limited Partners
Carry Partner
Total

AN
TR
B

I

i bR
.
iE—h

7

In conjunction with the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III subsequent closings in 2022, the capital accounts of
the partners have been rebalanced retroactively in accordance with the Partnership Agreement. This rebalancing
was done as if each capital commitment had been made as of the initial closing date.

Share of Profits/Losses and Carried Interest
Profits/losses of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III are allocated to the partners each period in a manner
that gives economic effect to the provisions of the Partnership Agreement. This allocation is generally based on

each partner’s contributed capital in proportion to total committed capital, unless otherwise noted in Note 2.

Each limited partner’s share of the management fees and any Carried Interest are specifically allocated to such
limited partner.
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Carried Interest/clawback (described below) is accrued based on cumulative earnings to date, including unrealized
appreciation and depreciation on investments. Carried Interest, if any, is subject to clawback described below and
will remain provisional until all investments are realized and cash distributions are made. For the year ended

December 31, 2022, | of Carried Interest was earned by the Carry Partner.

The ISQ Carry Partner may waive allocations of certain types of capital gain in respect of Carried Interest and the
distributions associated with such allocations.

Allocation of Placement Fees and Syndication Costs

Placement fees invoiced for specific limited partners are generally allocated to the particular limited partners in
respect of whose subscription such placement fees were incurred and in respect of whom placement fees may be
allocated. Placement fees invoiced to the fund as a whole, are generally allocated to limited partners in proportion
to their respective capital commitments adjusting for whom are precluded from being allocated placement fees. In
both cases, placement fees paid shall reduce the allocation to such Limited Partners of management fees on a
dollar-for-dollar basis.

Syndication costs are allocated to the limited partners in proportion to their respective capital commitments.

Distributions

N
w
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The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds ITT may make tax distributions to the Carry Partner in amounts sufficient to
enable its partner to pay their income taxes on allocated income in respect of Carried Interest.

Carried Interest Allocation Waived Amount

At any time prior to the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III’s recognition of capital gain from an Investment in
which the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III has a holding period for U.S. federal income tax purposes of more
than one year but not more than three years, the ISQ Carry Partner may, by providing written notice to the General
Partner, elect to irrevocably waive the allocation of Carried Interest (or portion thereof) to which it would otherwise
be entitled in connection with the recognition of such capital gain (such waived amount, a “Carried Interest
Allocation Waived Amount”). As a result of such waiver, the ISQ Carry Partner’s entitlement to distributions of
Carried Interest shall be reduced by the Carried Interest Allocation Waived Amount, with such amounts instead
being applied to the Participating Partners.

Clawback of Carried Interest

Upon termination of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT the Carry Partner will be required to repay the
ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III, for distribution to the limited partners, any amount of Carried Interest
previously distributed to it to the extent that total amounts distributed to the limited partners are insufficient to
return all of their capital contributions plus the Preferred Return thereon, as well as any amounts distributed to the
Carry Partner that exceed the sum of .% of aggregate proceeds since commencement of operations, before
Carried Interest distributions, less aggregate contributions for investments and fund expenses; provided that in no
event will the Carry Partner be required to repay an amount greater than the total Catried Interest distributions
received by it, net of taxes in respect of the allocation of Carried Interest.

In addition, the ISQ Carry Partner has a similar obligation to restore distributions to the Fund on an “interim
giveback” basis as of the end of the fiscal period after the end of the Commitment Period as well as the at the end
of the fiscal period during which the seven-year anniversary of the Final Closing Date occurs.

Each Principal or other person who receives Carried Interest from the ISQ Carry Partner will guarantee the
obligations of the ISQ Carry Partner to make a clawback payment on a several and proportionate basis.

Certain limited partners of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I1I have side letter agreements amending the terms
stated above.

6. Administration and Professional Fees
The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III has an agreement with
B o perform general administrative tasks for the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I which services include

maintaining financial records and the partners’ capital accounts.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III incurred $iiNE of

administration fees.
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=

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT incurred Sl o
professional fees primarily consisting of audit, tax, legal, insurance, consulting and depositary fees.

7. Management Fees

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT shall pay the Investment Manager a management fee, payable quarterly
in advance.

The management fee shall be assessed in respect of each limited partner’s management fee percentage per annum
of (i) such limited partner’s capital commitment until the earlier of (a) the termination of the Commitment Period
and (b) the first date on which the General Partner or any affiliate thereof begins to accrue a management fee from
any successor fund and (i) such limited partner’s pro rata share of actively invested capital thereafter. The
management fees shall also be assessed in respect of each limited partner’s capital commitments at the following
annual rates and capital commitment levels: (i) [Jli% vp to and including S| EN; () Bl greater than
up to and including SN i) Bl geater than S, vp to and including Sl
+ and (iv) I geearer than 5 I

For the year ended December 31, 2022, gross management fees for ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I totaled
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Quarterly management fees, otherwise payable to the Investment Manager will be offset, but not below zero by:

(i)  Organization and syndication costs of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I in excess of their
allocable share of the ceiling described in Note 2 and [Jf|”% of placement fees paid by the ISQ Global
Infrastructure Funds I1I; and

(ify  Special income fees, as defined in the Partnership Agreement, received from portfolio companies.
Offsets to management fees will generally be applied in the quarter following the payment of applicable costs or

receipts of applicable special income fees by the Investment Manager, and, if necessary, will be applied against
future management fees.
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8. Revolving Credit Facility

ISQ Global Infrastructure Pooling I, L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund III, L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure
Pooling 11 (EU), L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund III (EU), L.P., ISQ Global Infrastructure Pooling ITI
(USTE), L.P. and ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund Il (USTE), L.P. and ISQ Global Infrastructure Fund 11T (UST),
L.P., (collectively, the “Borrowing Funds”), entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with Citibank, N.A. as the lead lender along with Bank of America, Signature Bank, Bank of Nova Scotia, Standard
Chartered Bank, Commonwealth Bank of Australia, ANZ Banking Group, Deutsche Bank, JP Morgan Chase,
Credit Agricole and Santander. At December 31, 2022, the line of credit available under the Credit Agreement was
SEEE. 1he revolving credit facility is intended to be used as a working capital facility, and may be drawn
down on an as needed basis by the individual Borrowing Funds.

Botrowings under this arrangement will be according to an index rate, calculated as risk free rate adjusted for an
applicable margin and credit spread or an alternate base rate as determined by || N EM SN /1! borrowings are
scheduled to mature at the earliest of: (z) || S (1) the date at which | NSNS dcclares any
obligations due as a result of an event of default; (c) 60 days prior to the date of the termination of the investment
petiod; and (d) the date upon which the Borrowing Funds terminate the commitments, all as defined in the Credit
Agreement. However, the Borrowing Funds may request to extend the maturity date up to twelve months, subject
to satisfaction of certain conditions as discussed in the credit agreement.

The unfunded capital commitments of the limited partners of the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III serve as
collateral for the line of credit. The Borrowing Funds have agreed to cross-collateralize each other’s obligations
under the Credit Agreement.

At December 31, 2022, the Borrowing Funds has an outstanding balance of approximately $/ |l llllll vnder the
Credit Agreement. Such borrowing is bearing interest the risk free rate adjusted for an applicable margin and credit
spread.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III incurred interest in the amount
of unused commitment fees of S|l 2nd loan expense in the amount of § | rclated to
its outstanding borrowing and unutilized debt under the Credit Agreement, respectively, which are included in
interest and loan expense in the combined statement of operations.

9. Related Party Transactions

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III had the following related party transactions in addition to those
mentioned above:

It is the Investment Manager’s policy that any expenses relating to certain Environmental, Social and Governance
systems and advisers can be allocated and charged back to the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III on a pro-rata
basis. For the year ended December 31, 2022, ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds Il did not incur expenses relating
to certain Environmental, Social and Governance systems and advisers.

Investments are jointly owned by co-investment vehicles as disclosed in the combined schedule of investments, a
substantial number of which the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III own a controlling interest.

The Investment Manager and/or its affiliates may provide services to other investment funds and co-investment
vehicles that may have similar strategies as the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIL
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10.

11.

In certain jurisdictions (New Delhi and Shanghai), I Squared Capital and portfolio companies owned by the ISQ
Global Infrastructure Funds IIT have leased office space in the same building from the same landlord. The cost of
any common ateas shared between I Squared Capital and the portfolio companies are allocated between entities.
Other services such as telephony, internet, other I'T services, copiers, and other technology services are generally
entered into separately and individually by each company.

In addition, at times, I Squared Capital and its portfolio companies will utilize the services of the same service
provider. Such services are generally invoiced separately by the service provider to each party for their allocable
services. For services invoiced solely to I Squared Capital but which also benefited the portfolio companies, I
Squared Capital’s policy is to allocate based on the time and efforts associated with the services performed.

Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III enters into contracts that contain a
variety of representations and warranties and provide general indemnifications. The ISQ Global Infrastructure
Funds III maximum exposure under these agreements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may
be made against the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds II that have not yet occurred; however, the General Partner
expects the risk of material loss to be remote.

Certain entities in which the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III invest, may obtain third-party financing. The
ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III investments may be subordinated to the repayment of such financings.

Risks

The following summary of certain risk factors is not intended to be a comprehensive summary of all risks inherent
in investing in the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III. There can be no assurance that the ISQ Global
Infrastructure Funds IIT will be able to achieve its investment objectives or that investors will receive a return on
their capital or will not lose their capital investment.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III investments are highly concentrated in the investment, issuers and
industries disclosed in the combined schedule of investments. The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III
investments are subject to the risks associated with private investment. These investments are primarily illiquid,
non-marketable and long term in nature and there can be no assurance that the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds 111
will be able to realize the value of such investments in a timely manner. These investments involve a high degree
of business and financial risk that can result in substantial losses.
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The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT investments are subject to various risk factors including market, credit
and currency risk as well as the risks incidental to the ownership and operation of infrastructure projects, including
risks associated with the general economic climate, geographic or market concentration, the ability to manage
investments, government regulations and fluctuations in interest rates. Further business risks include, amongst
others, litigation, environmental, sovereign, construction, demand and usage, inflation, currency, operational and
valuation risk.

In addition, general economic conditions, as well as conditions of domestic and international financial markets and
regulatory environments, may adversely affect operations.

In particular, because of the long lead-time between the commencement of operations of a project and its
completion, a well-conceived project may, as a result of changes in investor sentiment, the financial markets,
economic or other conditions prior to its completion, become an economically unattractive investment.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III investments may utilize credit facilities from third party lending
institutions as important components of their capital structure. Certain economic conditions or company specific
factors could increase funding costs, limit access to the credit markets or result in a decision by lenders not to
extend credit to the investments. These circumstances, among others, may ultimately impact the value of the
ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT investments.

As discussed in Note 8, the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III has cross-collateralized any obligations under the
Credit Agreement and therefore is exposed to default risk by any of the Borrowing Funds.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT have no investors who individually own greater than [l of total capital
commitments. Any unfunded capital commitments are subject to the tisk of default.

As discussed in Note 1, the General Partner and Investment Manager provide investment management and other
services to the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIL. 'The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III could be materially
affected by the actions and liquidity of the General Partner and Investment Manager.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine continues to have significant potential to cause disruptions in several key areas,

including energy prices, trade, financial markets and broader geopolitics. These may negatively impact the
I1SQ Global Infrastructure Fund 1.

The ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds III are potentially exposed to cyber risk as the companies in which the
ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT will invest rely on information and technology systems which may be
vulnerable to damage or interruption from computer viruses, network failures, computer and telecommunication
failures, infiltration by unauthorized persons and security breaches, usage errors by their respective professionals,
power outages and catastrophic events such as fires, tornadoes, floods, hurricanes and earthquakes. The companies
in which the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds IIT will make investments may in the future become involved in
cyber security breaches. The failure of systems and/or of disaster recovery plans for any reason could cause
significant interruptions in the operations of these companies and result in a failure to maintain the security,
confidentiality or privacy of sensitive data, including personal information. Such a failure could result in
reputational harm for the companies in which the ISQ Global Infrastructure Funds I will invest, subject them or
their affiliates to legal claims and otherwise affect their business and financial performance.
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12.

13.

Financial Highlights
The financial highlights presented below are for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Cumulative IRR — initial capital contribution to December 31, 2022
Cumulative IRR — initial capital contribution to December 31, 2021

Supplemental IRR disclosure:
Cumulative IRR - inception to December 31, 2022 (before transaction vehicle tax)
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Cumulative IRR - inception to December 31, 2021 (before transaction vehicle tax) P ol
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Ratios to average limited partners’ capital:
Ratio of net expenses !
Ratio of accrued carried interest allocation
Ratio of net expenses and accrued carried interest allocation !
Ratio of net investment loss !
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The internal rate of return (“IRR”) is net of all fees and accrued carried interest allocation, is computed based on
the actual dates of the cash inflows from the limited partners, outflows to the limited partners and the ending
limited partners’ capital balance as of the measurement date. The expense and income/ (loss) ratios are calculated
for the limited partners taken as a whole and are calculated based on average quarterly partners’ capital. The ratio
of net investment income excludes the impact of the carried interest allocation.

The ratios and IRR for an individual partner’s capital account may differ among partners due to different
management fee arrangements and timing of subscription.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27, 2023, the date the combined financial statements were
available to be issued.

In March 2023, certain banks, including financing facility providers that lend to the ISQ Global Infrastructure
Funds 111, were widely reported to be experiencing difficulties. No adverse impact to the operations of the ISQ
Global Infrastructure Funds IIT’s operations is cutrently anticipated.

Except as stated, there were no subsequent events that require disclosure or adjustments to the financial statements.
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Copia de las cuentas anuales de TDR Capital General Partner V Limited
correspondientes al ejercicio cerrado el 31 de marzo de 2023, auditadas por
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of TDR Capital General Partner
V Limited (the '‘Company') for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities and review of the business

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the general partner to TDR Capital General Partner V L.P,, a
Scottish partnership which is the general partner of TDR Capital V L.P.

There are no anticipated changes to the business conducted by the Company in the foreseeable future.
Going concern

Combined with the ongoing geopolitical conflicts related to Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, the economic
challenges arisen due to the increased cost of living, have created a humanitarian crisis, driven commodity
prices and government bond yields sharply higher and raised concerns about the sustainability of the global
economic recovery. The Company continues to monitor the situation and the impact has been considered
within the going concern assessment and the valuation of the investment portfolio. The Company is not aware
of any direct material exposure to Russia or the Ukraine; and is well placed to manage its business risks
successfully. Further, the Company will continue to monitor how indirect impacts such as inflation could
adversely impact the Company.

Results and dividends

The results of operation for the year, after taxation, amounted to £Nil (Period from 24 August 2021 to
31 March 2022: £Nil).

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, unless
otherwise indicated, are given below:

E Gilks (appointed 5 April 2023)
G May
O Morris (resigned 5 April 2023)
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Statement of directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
Section 1A. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies in accordance with Section 10 of FRS 102 and then apply them
consistently;

« make judgements and accounting-estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in FRS 102 Section 1A
is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the Company financial position and financial performance;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 Section 1A, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that
the Company will not continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a directors' report that
complies with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website.

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persons who are directors at the time of approval of this report has confirmed that:

» so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor
is unaware; and

- that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that
information.
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Independent auditor

The auditor, |} JEEEEEE ' be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Small company exemption

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small company exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 2006.

The directors have also taken advantage of the small company exemptions provided by section 414B of the
Companies Act 2006 and have not prepared a strategic report. :

This report was approved by the board on 21 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Director
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TDR
CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TDR Capital General Partner V Limited (the ‘Company') for the
year ended 31 March 2023, which comprise the profit and loss account, balance sheet, statement of changes
in equity and the related notes 1 to 11, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its result for the year
then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and the provisions available for small entities, in the circumstances set
out in note 3.1 to the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TDR
CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: .
- the information given in the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small
companies regime and take advantage of the small companies exemptions in preparing the directors'
report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report. :

}

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 3, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TDR
CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED (continued)

Responsibilities of directors (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both
those charged with governance of the entity and management.

Our approach was as follows:

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Company and determined that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in conformity with the requirement of
Companies Act 2006 as applied to the Company.

»  We understood how TDR Capital General Partner V Limited is complying with those frameworks by
making enquiries of management and by seeking representation from those charged with
governance. We corroborated our understanding by reviewing the directors' meeting minutes and
relevant policy and procedures manuals.

«  We assessed the susceptibility of the Company's financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by considering the risk of management override. We incorporated
data analytics and performed journal entry testing by specific risk criteria, with a focus on manual
journals and journals indicating large or unusual transactions based on our understanding of the
business.

+ Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures involved enquiries of management and those charged with
governance, review of legal and professional expenses, review of breaches and complaints register,
and review of directors’ meeting minutes.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TDR
CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

(Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

London
Date: 21 July 2023
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Period from

24 August

2021 to

31 March

2023 2022

£ £

Turnover ) 12,424,093 -
Operating expenses ) (12,423,972) -
Gross profit 121 -
Administrative expenses (121) -

Result of ordinary activities before taxation - -
Tax on loss on ordinary activities : - -
Result for the financial year/period : - -

All amounts above relate to continuing operations.

The Company has no items of other comprehensive income for the current financial year or preceding
financial period. Therefore no separate statement of other comprehensive income has been presented.

The notes on pages 12 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET _ Registered number: SC707592
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
Note £ £
Current assets

Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 7 - 1
Cash at bank and in hand 79 -
79 1
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 (78) -
Net current assets 1 1
Net assets 1 1

Capital and Reserves
Called up share capital ] 1 1
Retained earnings - -
Total equity 1 1

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to small companies
within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with the provisions of Financial Reporting
Standard 102, "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of
Ireland” as amended by Section 1A "Small Entities".

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf
on 21 July 2023 by:

Director

The notes on pages 12 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

10
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Called up Retained

share capital earnings Total equity

£ £ £

At 24 August 2021 - - -
Share issue during the period 1 - 1
Result far the financial period - - -
At 31 March 2022 1 - 1
At 1 April 2022 1 - 1
Result for the financial year - - -
At 31 March 2023 1 - 1

The notes on pages 12 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

1
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3.1

3.2

General information

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the general partner to TDR Capital General Partner V
L.P., a Scottish partnership which is the general partner of TDR Capital V L.P.

TDR Capital General Partner V Limited is a private Company, limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in Scotland. The registered office is 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH3 SWJ.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of TDR Capital General Partner V Limited have been prepared in compliance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’' (‘'FRS 102') as
amended by Section 1A and the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to small entities.

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention
and in accordance with Section 1A of Financial Reporting Standard 102, the 'Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland' and the Companies Act 2006.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available to small companies from the
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The following principal accounting policies have been applied:
Going concern

Combined with the ongoing geopolitical conflicts related to Russia's invasion of Ukraine, the economic
challenges arisen due to the increased cost of living, have created a humanitarian crisis, driven
commodity prices and government bond vyields sharply higher and raised concerns about the
sustainability of the global economic recovery. The Company continues to monitor the situation and the
impact has been considered within the going concern assessment and the valuation of the investment
portfolio. The Company is not aware of any direct material exposure to Russia or the Ukraine; and is
well placed to manage its business risks successfully. Further, the Company will continue to monitor
how indirect impacts such as inflation could adversely impact the Company.

12
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3

3.3

34

Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency

The Company's functional and presentational currency is the pound sterling.
ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account within administrative expenses.

Taxation

Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period.
Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case tax is also recognised in equity.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

i. Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the period or prior
periods. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences between taxable profits and total
comprehensive income as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses and
other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered against the

reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

13
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3.5

3.6

3.7

Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the entity after deducting all of its financial liabilities.

Where the contractual obligations of financial instruments (including share capital) are equivalent to a
similar debt instrument, those financial instruments are classed as financial liabilities. Financial liabilities
are presented as such on the balance sheet. Finance costs and gains or losses relating to financial
liabilities are included in the statement of comprehensive income. Finance costs are calculated so as to
produce a constant rate of return on the outstanding liability.

Where the contractual terms of share capital do not have any terms meeting the definition of a financial
liability this is classed as an equity instrument. Dividends and distributions relating to equity instruments
are debited direct to equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Related party transactions

In accordance with Section 33.1A of FRS 102, the Company is exempt from disclosing related party
transactions with companies that are wholly owned within the TDR Capital LLP group.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Auditor's remuneration

Period from

24 August

2021 to

31 March

2023 2022

£ £

Fees payable to the Company's auditor in
respect of audit services 3,755 3,535

Auditor's remuneration is borne by TDR Capital LLP.
Directors and employees
Directors' remuneration of £16,000 (2022: £Nil) is borne by TDR Capital LLP.

There were no employees during the year other than the directors.

14
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TDR CAPITAL GENERAL PARTNER V LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

7 Debtors
2023 2022
_ £ £
Other debtors - 1
8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2023 2022
£ £
Amounts owed to group undertakings 78 -
9 Share capital
2023 2022
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1 (2022: 1) ordinary share of £1 1 1

10  Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party
The Company's immediate and ultimate parent undertaking is TDR Capital LLP, a Limited Liability
Partnership incorporated in England and Wales. Copies of TDR Capital LLP consolidated financial
statements can be obtained from the registered office at:
20 Bentinck Street
London
W1U 2EU

1" Subsequent events

There were no subsequent events after 31 March 2023 to disclose.

15



	Anexo 06_redacted
	Anexo 07_redacted
	Anexo 08_redacted
	Anexo 09_redacted

